
 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
PACKET 

 

FOR 
 

Tuesday, January 19, 2016 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon 
    
 
 

5:30 pm Executive Session 
(ORS 192.660(2)(f), Consider Exempt Public Records) 

 
6:30 PM Work Session 

 
7:00 pm City Council Regular Meeting 

 



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
January 19, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 

5:30 PM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
1. Exempt Public Records, ORS 192.660(2)(f)  

(City Attorney Soper) 
 
6:30 PM WORK SESSION 
 
1. Update on Cedar Creek Trail Project (Michelle Miller) 
 

REGULAR SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

  
3. ROLL CALL 

 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

A. Approval of January 5, 2016 City Council Meeting Minutes 

B. Resolution 2016-002 Extending the term of the Franchise Agreement between City of Sherwood 

and Comcast (Brad Crawford, IT Director) 
 

6. PRESENTATIONS 

 

A. Proclamation, January 2016 as School Board Month 

 

7. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
A. Resolution 2016-003 Adjusting Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Rates  

(Joseph Gall, City Manager) 
 

B. Ordinance 2016-001 Repealing Chapter 3.25 Marijuana Tax 

(Josh Soper, City Attorney) Second Reading 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL 
January 19, 2016 

 
 

5:30 pm Executive Session 
(ORS 192.660(2)(f), Exempt Public Records) 

 

6:30 pm Work Session 
 

7:00 pm City Council Regular Meeting 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, OR  97140 

1



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
January 19, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

C. Ordinance 2016-002 Declaring a Ban on Recreational Marijuana Producers, Recreational 

Marijuana Processors, Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, and Recreational Marijuana 

Retailers; Referring Ordinance (Josh Soper, City Attorney) Second Reading 

 
D. Ordinance 2016-003 Imposing a Three Percent Tax on the sale of Marijuana items by a 

Marijuana Retailer and Referring Ordinance (Josh Soper, City Attorney) Second Reading 

 

E. Ordinance 2016-004 Declaring a Ban on Medical Marijuana Processing Sites and Medical 

Marijuana Dispensaries; Referring Ordinance (Josh Soper, City Attorney) First Reading 

 

9. CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 

10. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

11. ADJOURN  
 
 
How to Find Out What's on the Council Schedule: 
City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, by the Thursday prior to a Council meeting. Council agendas 
are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall, the Sherwood YMCA, the Senior Center, and the Sherwood Post Office. Council meeting materials are available at the 
Sherwood Public Library. To Schedule a Presentation before Council: If you would like to schedule a presentation before the City Council, please submit your name, 
phone number, the subject of your presentation and the date you wish to appear to the City Recorder Sylvia Murphy, 503-625-4246 or murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov 

2

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/
mailto:murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov


DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 1 of 23 

 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

January 5, 2016 

 

WORK SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:   Mayor Krisanna Clark called the meeting to order at 6:03 pm. 
 

2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Clark, Council President Robinson, Councilors Linda Henderson, Jennifer 
Harris, and Renee Brouse. Councilor King arrived at 6:13 pm. 

 
3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Joe Gall, City Attorney Josh Soper, Public Works Director Craig 

Sheldon, Police Captain Ty Hanlon, Administrative Assistant Colleen Resch and City Recorder Sylvia 
Murphy.  
 

4. TOPICS: 

 
A. Willamette Governance Group Update  
 
Public Works Director Craig Sheldon presented information to the City Council, (see record, Exhibit A). 
Craig provided an overview of the Willamette Governance Group (WGG) and the Willamette River Water 
Coalition (WRWC), informed of the partners, scope and objectives. Craig explained the approach of the 
WGG, the work plan and proposed timelines. Craig explained Preliminary Concepts and Tentative 
Agreements.  
 
Craig provided an overview of the Preliminary Concept organizational chart and explained some of the 
topics currently under discussion regarding the WRWC, water rights, ownership and future requirements 
for existing WRWC partners. 
 
Craig explained the next steps as continued meetings with the WGG, staff briefings to Council to review 
tentative agreements with an anticipated agreement by late 2016, followed by adoption of agreement and 
completion of the Water Treatment Master Plan. Council questions and discussion followed. 
 

5. ADJOURN: 

 

Mayor Clark adjourned the work session at 6:22 pm and convened to an Executive Session. 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:   Mayor Clark called the meeting to order at 6:25 pm. 

3



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 2 of 23 

 
2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Krisanna Clark, Council President Sally Robinson, Councilors Dan King 

Linda Henderson, Jennifer Kuiper, Jennifer Harris, and Renee Brouse.  
  
3. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: City Attorney Josh Soper. City Recorder Sylvia Murphy 

joined the meeting at approximately 6:35 pm. 
 

4. TOPICS: 

 

A. ORS 192.660(2)(i), Performance Evaluation of Public Officials. City Recorder annual performance 
evaluation.  

  
5. ADJOURN 

 
Mayor Clark adjourned the Executive Session at 6:55 pm and convened to a regular session. 

 

REGULAR SESSION 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER:   Mayor Clark called the meeting to order at 7:02 pm. 
 
2.  COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Clark, Council President Robinson, Councilors Linda Henderson, Jennifer 

Kuiper, Jennifer Harris, Renee Brouse, and Dan King. 
  
3.  STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Joe Gall, City Attorney Josh Soper, Police Captain Ty Hanlon, 

Community Development Director Julia Hajduk, Public Works Director Craig Sheldon, Planning Manager 
Brad Kilby, Associate Planner Connie Randall, Administrative Assistant Colleen Resch, and City 
Recorder Sylvia Murphy.  

 

 Mayor Clark addressed the next agenda item and asked for a motion. 
 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

 

MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT ROBINSON TO APPROVE THE AGENDA, SECONDED BY 

COUNCILOR KUIPER. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

  

Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda. 
 

5.  CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

A. Approval of December 1, 2015 City Council Meeting Minutes 

B. Approval of December 15, 2015 City Council Meeting Minutes 

 

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR HENDERSON TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA, SECONDED 

BY COUNCILOR HARRIS. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 

Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda. 
 

4



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 3 of 23 

6. PRESENTATIONS: 

 

A. Recognition of Eagle Scout Award Recipients 

 
Mayor Clark congratulated Ryan Chidlaw for earning his Eagle Scout Award. Mayor Clark asked Ryan to 
explain his Eagle Scout project. Ryan stated he put in three benches and cleaned up Gibbs Cemetery, 
which is located between Newberg and Sherwood. He stated he had the help of approximately ten other 
scouts and planned the project over the summer. Mayor Clark stated obtaining an Eagle Award is not an 
easy task and takes a lifetime of commitment. Mayor Clark congratulated Ryan, and presented him with a 
Certificate of Achievement. 

 
Mayor Clark recognized and congratulated Ryan Peyton and Brenden Tuohy for obtaining the rank of 
Eagle Scout. Neither scout was present and Mayor Clark indicated the certificates would be mailed.  
 
Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda. 
 

7.   NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Selection of 2016 City Council President 

 

Mayor Clark thanked outgoing Council President Robinson for her service. She commented on her efforts 
as the liaison to the Planning Commission and for her work as the Liaison to the Sherwood West Project. 
Mayor Clark spoke the number of meetings Councilor Robinson attended over the year, including running 
the City Council meetings in the Mayors absence. 
 
Council President Robison thanked Council for the opportunity to serve as Council President and stated 
she has learned in the last year how important the work of the Mayor is in the preparation of a meeting. 
She said it has been a lot of work and enjoyable and her workload at her full time job is requiring her to 
step down as Council President. She said she believes it would be meaningful to have another Council 
member have the opportunity to run a Council meeting. Council President Robinson recommended 
Councilor Harris to serve as Council President. Mayor Clark stated she seconded the recommendation 
and commented on Councilor Harris’s attributes. Councilor Harris accepted the nomination.  
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT ROBINSON TO NOMINATED COUNCILOR HARRIS AS 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT, SECONDED BY MAYOR CLARK. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS 

VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 
8. CITIZEN COMMENTS: 

 

Laurie Zwingli with the Sherwood Police Foundation came forward and presented the Sherwood Police 
Department with two Active Shooter Medical Bags. She said in the last few years the country has suffered 
several active shooter incidents and in response SKEDCO, Inc., a Tualatin company, has developed and 
now offers Active Shooter Medical Bags. She said through donations the Police Foundation is able to 
provide the Sherwood Police Department with these bags to assist the officers. She said the bags are 
valued at $720 each and she described the contents of the bags.  Captain Ty Hanlon accepted the bags 
and the Council members thanked Ms. Zwingli. 
 

5



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 4 of 23 

Pat Olds approached the Council and commented regarding his anger and frustration over the death of 
his brother at the intersection between Walmart and Target. He referred to the challenges of City 
government but questioned the priorities of the City. He provided the example of removing the 
monuments in Old Town and asked if that was more important than the possibility of losing more lives at 
the intersection between Walmart and Target. He said that intersection is probably the busiest in the City 
and asked why there is not some sort of marking showing a crosswalk and perhaps lighting. He asked 
what the status was with improving the intersection and noted that it has been a year since his brother 
passed away.  
 
Mayor Clark informed Mr. Olds that this is not a question and answer time. 
 
City Manager Gall responded that there are plans to improve that intersection. 
 
Community Development Director Julia Hajduk stated a timeframe has not been established but it could 
be done in a short period of time. She noted there needs to be a study to determine if a safe crossing 
could be put in there and stated there are crossings at the roundabout and at the main intersection and 
the City needs to analyze whether it would be more problematic to encourage people to cross there. She 
said there are plans to move forward but they need to identify funding. 
 
Mr. Gall said he is estimating it to be a $100,000 improvement. He offered to discuss the issue in more 
detail with Mr. Olds. 
 
Mayor Clark asked if there were requirements on pedestrian crossings when the area was developed.  
 
Ms. Hajduk said they do look at pedestrian connections and said there are pedestrian crossings and that 
intersection is a driveway and they did not envision or wanted pedestrians to cross there. She said there 
are crosswalks at the roundabout and at Tualatin Sherwood Road. She noted that the reality is people are 
crossing there and it is a problem and the City realizes it needs to be addressed. 
 
Mayor Clark asked if the City is responsible for paying for the improvement of should the developer.  
 
Ms. Hajduk said if it was anticipated at the time they could potentially require the developer to pay for it 
but in this case it was not anticipated. 
 
Scott Nelson, Sherwood resident and Sherwood YMCA Board member approached the Council to 
discuss the YMCA agreement. He said over the last 17 years the agreement between the City and the 
YMCA has produced a number of financial benefits. He said at the opening the YMCA raised the initial 
$125,000 for the pool slide and years ago the City and the YMCA agreed to add 10,000 square feet to the 
facility to enclose the sport court and add the Teen Center. He said the YMCA raised $250,000 and the 
City borrowed the remaining $1.5 million, which became the responsibility of the YMCA, and this year it 
will be paid off. He said over the years City Managers and the YMCA agreed to forego dividing the annual 
operating surplus, if any, to improve the City owned asset and strengthen the YMCA operations. He said 
this represents a gift to the City exceeding $225,000. He said in addition the YMCA has voluntarily 
charged less for management service allowed in the contract and this gift of more than $400,000 has 
been invested in the operations of the YMCA. He said as a result of successful operation of the YMCA, 
the YMCA has invested more than $1 million in facility improvements. He said over the years the YMCA 
has leased equipment and as each lease expires new equipment replaces the old. He noted that exit 

6



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 5 of 23 

surveys indicate that members would like a quicker turnaround of equipment. He stated that the current 
operating agreement between the City and the YMCA expires October 31, 2018 and any equipment lease 
the YMCA would enter into at this point would extend beyond that period. He said the YMCA would like to 
make additional investments to the building that exceeds the reserve fund balance. He said the YMCA 
has identified other discretionary improvements to the facility and provided examples. He noted that 
without the assurance of an operating agreement it becomes difficult to justify spending that money. He 
noted the YMCA plans to continue to operate in good faith and serve the community but urged the 
Council to direct the City Manager to reinitiate the contract negotiations for a reasonable operating 
agreement.   
 
Gail Cutsforth, Sherwood resident and Sherwood YMCA Regional Board of Directors member came 
forward to discuss the YMCA contract negotiations. She said on June 18, 2013, then Councilor Clark 
brought up the discussion of the City’s YMCA operating agreement and directed staff to send a letter 
requesting documents from the YMCA and hire a firm to review the agreement. She stated in the fall of 
2013 TWK was hired to review the agreement. She noted Rob Moody with TKW conducted the evaluation 
and reviewed the relevant terms and the compliance to those terms. She said the review focused on the 
stated financial arrangement between the two parties and payments to the City under the agreement. She 
stated Mr. Moody suggested revisions to the agreement specifically regarding financial terms and 
conditions. She said the City spent $6500 to conduct the review. She said the YMCA staff and City staff 
met on various dates in 2014 to discuss the agreement and the last meeting was October 9, 2014. She 
stated that since then the YMCA has repeatedly asked to continue negotiations and clean up the 
agreement. She noted that on December 15, 2014 an updated version of a preliminary agreement was 
sent to City Manager Joe Gall for Council review which to the YMCA’s knowledge has not happened. She 

said the YMCA requested a special meeting to discuss the agreement and was denied. She said the 
YMCA received a letter on July 24, 2015 from the City referencing section 33 of the agreement and the 
YMCA responded and disagreed with the City’s interpretation and asked for an extension for the users 
who were being asked to vacate the YMCA. She said the extension was granted and a meeting to 
discuss section 33 was scheduled for November 6, 2015. She said the YMCA and the City are working 
through this issue. She stated YMCA President and CEO Bob Hall sent a letter to the Council on October 
23, 2015 reiterating his desire to continue negotiating a new contract and Mayor Clark replied on October 
26, 2015 that all communications regarding contract negotiations are to be handled directly by the City of 
Sherwood staff. She said in a monthly meeting with Mr. Gall on November 24, 2015, Mr. Hall asked about 
continued negotiations and Mr. Gall responded that he is waiting for direction from the Council. She 
asked the Council to direct City staff to resume negotiations with the YMCA.  
 
Tim Baugus, Sherwood resident approached the Council and stated that he works for Skanska. He said 
he is concerned for the safety and livability of Sherwood and the lack of police action addressing 
protesters in City neighborhoods. He stated there is an ongoing issue with occurrences on May 2, May 
23, May 28, October 31, November 15, November 21 and December 6 during the day and as late as 11 
pm. He noted on these dates his home and the surrounding neighborhood was victimized by a group that 
used graffiti, bullhorns, personal threats and screaming with the intent of waking the neighborhood and 
scaring young children and terrorizing families. He stated he has had several discussions with the police 
and Mr. Gall and they have been assured that action would be taken and the laws of the City would be 
enforced but when the protesters arrive nothing is done. He said a taskforce has been created that 
consists of the FBI, Beaverton Police, Washington County and Sherwood Police. He stated there is a 
specific task that Sherwood Police were asked to complete including filing reports for every incident and 
trying to identify the people. He said these are not being done consistently or not being done at all. He 

7



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 6 of 23 

said he has provided pictures and the Sherwood Police have not identified one person. He said this 
inaction has caused the protesters to become more brazen as evidenced by the December 6 event when 
they arrived at 11 pm using bullhorns and shouting. He said this event clearly broke the City laws yet not 
one citation was issued and not one person was positively identified. He stated the protesters are using 
terrorist’s tactics to intimidate his family, neighbors and the police. He referred to meetings with Mr. Gall 
and City Attorney Josh Soper and said it is clear that Mr. Soper is directing the Sherwood Police 
Department to ignore the laws that have been passed to protect the citizens. He said Mr. Soper is 
focusing on the constitutionality of the ordinance instead of enforcing the ordinances. He stated the 
inaction has gone far enough and he is concerned for the safety of his family and neighbors. He 
commented on the groups social media where they are celebrating violent actions including fire-bombing 
of different facilities. He provided a petition with 55 names and asked the Council to direct Mr. Soper and 
Mr. Gall to enforce the current laws and he asked to pass a residential picketing law.   
 
Shelby Baugus, Sherwood resident approached the Council and played an audio recording of the 
protesters that was taken from inside their house. She commented on how scary the shouting is 
especially for young children and late at night.  
 
Lori Baugus, Sherwood resident came forward and commented on the need to feel safe in your home. 
She said her neighbors have had their homes invaded by the noise of these picketers and the protesters 
hold them as captive victims with no place to escape. She said this is an invasion into our homes and 
privacy and despite promises from the police and City Manager not one citation has been issued. She 
stated Mr. Soper has informed them that he has directed the police not to issue any noise violation 
citations for any reason because he questions the constitutionality of the law. She argued that the job of 
the police is not to question the law but to uphold it as it is written. She said the direction from the City to 
the police is putting patrol officers in the position of being judge and jury and has caused confusion 
among officers and resentment among citizens. She said the citizens deserve to have the laws enforced. 
She referred to a meeting with Mr. Soper on December 21 where he indicated that the protesters are 
simply trying to communicate a message and have the legal right to scream, yell and intimidate as a form 
of communication. She said the picketing at her home is intended to do more than convey a message of 
opposition to an animal lab. She stated the picketing is not friendly and is an assault on her family and 
neighborhood and interferes with their daily life and privacy. She said they have presented the City 
Manager and City Attorney with a packet of information regarding residential picketing ordinances and 
said this type of law protects all citizens against residential protesting and would empower the police. She 
noted picketing for the purpose of imposing psychological harm is not constitutionally protected and the 
US Supreme Court agrees that residential picketing ordinances are valuable in protecting the privacy of 
the home. She encouraged the Council to pass a residential picketing law and allow and encourage the 
police to do their jobs and issue noise citations for the noise violations. 
 
Ellie Perka, approached the Council and stated she is a lawyer from Seattle representing the Baugus 
family with regards to the protester. She commented regarding the severity of the protester’s conduct with 

threatening phrases and aggressive behavior. She stated Mr. Baugus is a contractor and is not testing 
animals. She said this facility that is being protested is a building at the University of Washington and the 
protest group is targeting executives. She referred to the noise ordinance 9.52.030 which states that it is 
unlawful for any person to knowingly create a system creating permit or continue to permit the 
continuance of any noise disturbance. She commented on the concerns about the ordinance and noted 
that the ordinance is very clear and states that a noise disturbance is any sound which annoys, disturbs, 
injures or endangers the comfort, repose, health, peace or safety of others. She referred to the audio 

8



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 7 of 23 

recording that was played and said it violates the noise ordinance. She commented on the bullhorn 
prohibition which is cited at 9.52.040 which provides specific times where bullhorns are prohibited. She 
noted these protesters are using bullhorns and she encouraged the City to issue citations under both of 
these ordinances. She commented on the constitutional issues and said they are complicated and in her 
opinion are constitutional.     
 
Mark Cottle, Sherwood resident came forward and stated the City Attorney has no authority to direct 
Sherwood Police Officers as to the enforceability of any ordinance. He said the City Attorney’s job is to 

give the Council the discretion and advise as to what he believes is constitutional and the reason for that 
is the police take an oath of office to uphold the laws of the community. He said the current ordinance 
cites an Oregon Supreme Court case as to what is a viable noise ordinance when harassment in the 
second degree which prohibits any noise that threatens, intimidates or annoys based not on content but 
on time, place and manner, meaning everything those people said was protected. He said it is not 
protected if you bring it into a neighborhood at 11 pm and begin screaming. He stated that he lives about 
100 yards behind the Baugus family and he can hear the protesters inside his house and noted that is a 
gross invasion of his constitutional right to privacy and violation of his right to peaceful enjoyment of his 
property. He encouraged the Council to have the police uphold their oath of office. He stated that they 
cannot be arbitrarily capricious in your enforcement of the ordinance and asked for peace in their 
neighborhood until the ordinance is fixed. He noted that the police are under an oath of office and the 
violation of which is punishable by loss of their license to be police officers and they should not be in that 
position.  
 
Jeff Roberts, Sherwood resident approached the Council and said he lives across the street from the 
Baugus residence. He expressed his frustration and read emails he received from the Chief of Police with 
copies to Officer Hanlon, Mr. Gall, Mr. Soper, Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier and Officer Daniel. 
He said they called the police on November 15 at 9:50 pm when they heard the protesters screaming and 
no one came and he said the next time the police came and did nothing. He stated Chief Groth 
responded that they do have the right to protest but not to disturb the peace and said they will work to not 
allow it in the future. He said this communication was in November and the protests started in May. He 
referred to emails exchanged on November 24 where Chief Groth stated the officers have been directed 
to identify and cite anyone using bullhorns and said officers have been given clear direction. He said a 
week later the protesters came at 11 pm and they woke up his children and scared them. He asked 
rhetorical questions regarding repeatedly breaking the law and would they just be given a warning. He 
said after 6 incidents with the protesters they are past just being warned. He stated the Police Chief, the 
City Manager, the City Attorney are all aware of this issue. He said he contacted Mayor Clark last month 
and she responded that she met with the City Manager and requested an action and he asked what has 
happened in a month. He noted he emailed three Council members and thanked Councilor Brouse for her 
response and stated she was the only one to respond. He encouraged leadership and said he asked 
Chief Groth what he can personally do within the law to protect his family. 
 
Councilor King asked to respond to Mr. Roberts. Mayor Clark said Council can respond after the citizen 
comment period and after staff responds. 
 
Joan Roberts, Sherwood resident came forward and said she lives across the street from the Baugus 
family and has been dealing with protesters since May. She commented on safety in Sherwood and said 
she is upset by these protesters. She commented on the lack of police response and said she confronted 
the protesters at 11 pm and told them to go home and said they were disrupting the peace. She said the 

9



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 8 of 23 

protesters looked at her with contempt. She stated that she has four daughters and the neighborhood has 
several small children and said she doesn’t feel that she can be protected by the police. She encouraged 

the Council, the City Attorney and the Police Department to handle this issue.  
 
Claude Campbell, Sherwood resident approached the Council and said he lives next door to the Baugus 
residence. He noted that Mr. Baugus is the subject of these demonstrations and his company more 
specifically. He said several months ago an animal rights organization began holding demonstrations in 
front of the Baugus home and used bullhorns and offensive and vulgar language and left behind written 
foul language on the sidewalk. He said he and his wife experienced physical and psychological results 
from the demonstrations that have occurred as late as 11 pm. He stated they disturb the peace and quiet 
and their civil rights. He commented regarding calling 911 to report the protesters and two Sherwood 
Police officers arrived and did nothing to uphold the City ordinance prohibiting the noise or disorderly 
conduct. He said the Sherwood Police are now in violation of their individual oath of office where they 
promised to uphold the laws of Sherwood as well as the State of Oregon. He said on each occasion when 
the demonstrators appeared and began their vile language broadcast through amplification equipment the 
police failed to act and did not ask for protester’s identification and failed to issue citations. He stated he 

called Chief Groth and the Chief discussed how he was going to instruct the Police Department to act and 
said he would fix it. He referred to trust and said he is appalled by the lack of concern for the citizens of 
Sherwood and their civil rights. He said the Council also took an oath of office to uphold the laws and he 
expects they are also in violation of their oath and asked them to consider the leadership of the Police 
Department and make changes.  
 
Lance Dowdle, Sherwood resident came forward and said he also resides on Sunset Boulevard and is 
affected by the protesters. He said the protesters plan to disrupt the public and the police do not cite them 
or discourage them from returning. He stated he heard on December 6 through a video one officer saying 
the protesters left when asked and there was nothing more that he was going to do even though the laws 
of Sherwood were broken. He suggested the police use the same restraint when dealing with other 
infractions around the City and provided examples of traffic infractions. He said there is fear and mistrust 
between the police and the citizens. He noted the examples he cited were driving mistakes or oversights 
and not one of those examples were planned and prepared for. He stated these protesters plan, prepare, 
campaign, fundraise, and seek advice of attorneys with the purpose to terrorize with the intent to harm 
and have only been given a warning. He asked for consistency in enforcing the law and said City 
employees work for the citizens and commented on distrust for the Sherwood Police Department and said 
the problem needs to be fixed.  
 
Andy Jensen, Sherwood resident approached the Council and added his support to those that have 
expressed concerns for the protests and the concern of the existing ordinances not being enforced. He 
stated he endorses adoption of an ordinance to further limit residential picketing to help preserve and 
protect the livability of our City. 
 
Janet Bechtold, Sherwood resident came forward and said she lives down the street and around from the 
Baugus residence. She said she has lived here since 1978 and has never heard anything like this. She 
said she can hear the protesters and commented on the number of children that are affected in the 
neighborhood.  
 
Eugene Stewart, Sherwood property owner commented on the children in the audience that left covering 
their ears when the audio of the protesters was played. He said it appears that children are being 

10



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 9 of 23 

traumatized and it needs to stop. He requested that the Council put the Senior Center on a future agenda 
to discuss the direction of the Center. He suggested setting up a Board for the Senior Center and he 
encourage the Council to look at how Wilsonville has handled their Senior Center.   
 
Mayor Clark acknowledged that this issue is volatile and explained that the Council is not in charge of the 
Police Department and Sherwood has a City Manager form of government. She asked City Manager 
Joseph Gall to respond to the many critiques. 
 
Mr. Gall stated that they have been involved with this issue for a number of months and there was a spike 
in activity in the spring and it slowed down in the summer and resumed in the fall. He said it is a national 
campaign that is targeting Skanska executives throughout the country. He noted that an executive in 
Beaverton is dealing with protesters once a week. He said he has been working on the issue for the past 
6 weeks and will have the police and Mr. Soper discuss the challenges they face. He stated he has a 
particular request for a residential picketing ordinance and will seek direction from the Council. He noted 
that it is a difficult issue and he understands the frustration and said there are ways to address it and do a 
better job. He said Sherwood is still a safe community and agreed that this needs to be fixed. He asked 
Captain Hanlon to discuss how the Police Department has been handling this issue and why citations 
have not been issued.  
 
Captain Hanlon said he empathizes with the citizens and appreciates them coming forward and 
expressing their concerns. He said it is disheartening to hear that they do not trust the Police Department. 
He stated the Police Department has been working on this problem since May and they have 
communicated with officers on how to respond. He noted that the Police Department responded to the 
situation on April 5 at 6:50 pm, May 2 at 8:00 pm, May 23 at 4:25 pm, and June 14 at 7:38 pm. He noted 
there was a lull in activity during the summer. He referred to the group’s social media presence and said 

for a while the group provided the information on when and where the protests would occur which helped 
but now they have changed their tactic and they continue to change their tactics. He stated that this is the 
protesters full time jobs. He stated the protesters returned and the Police Department responded on 
October 31, November 13 at 9:55 pm, November 15 at 8:50 pm, November 21 at 7:15 pm and December 
6 at 11:00 pm. He said they have not been back since December 6 and he noted there is video of one of 
the officers that responding on December 6. He commented on response times and he noted that the 
Police Department is 4 square miles from the Baugus residence and typically there are only two officers 
on duty. He said when the police received a call on November 15 they were dispatched at 8:54 pm and 
arrived at 8:57 pm and on December 6 dispatched at 11:04 pm and arrived at 11:07 pm. He said the 
department has instructed officers that because this is a protest situation and protesters can be volatile 
and unpredictable the protocol is to have 3 officers present. He noted that Sherwood only has two officers 
on duty so they will request backup from a neighboring community. He stated that Beaverton has been 
dealing with this issue and determined that the protesters have been resistive and volatile. He said he is 
in close contact with the Beaverton Police Department regarding this situation. He commented on the 
efforts being made by the Sherwood Police Department regarding this issue and stated that according to 
the mobile computers in the police cars which documents where they have been the Sherwood Police 
have been to the Baugus neighborhood 144 times. He said those are extra patrols and the efforts they 
are making to discourage the protesters. He noted there tactics are to hit and run and show up and get on 
the bullhorns for 10 or 15 minutes and leave. He stated that Sherwood Police can get to the scene quickly 
and said they do want to issue citations for the bullhorn use and have been in discussion on how to make 
that work. He said he understands the frustration and has had conversations with the Baugus family and 
they are hoping they can address this collectively.  

11



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 10 of 23 

 
Mr. Gall said he watched a video from the December 6 demonstration and said the officer approached the 
group and was waiting for other officers and told the group that they were violating the noise ordinance 
and told them that they would be issued citations if they did not stop and the two leaders of the group 
went back to the group and had a short conversation and they continued chanting and went to their cars 
and no citations were issued. He asked Captain Hanlon why citations weren’t issued in that specific 

instance. 
 
Captain Hanlon said on December 6 they have a recording of an officer that arrived on the scene and 
was the sole officer and was waiting for an additional officer to arrive. He said the officer made contact 
with people involved who were believed to have spearheaded it with a couple of others. He stated that 
once contact was made the leaders made contact with the rest of the group and dispersed. He said that is 
his recollection from the video and what the officers recounted that it was within a few minutes and the 
protesters were gone. He referred to the directive to try to identify the bullhorn users and in this 
particularly case a bullhorn was seen but not being used at the time, and because they dispersed the 
officer did not identify anybody or issue a citation. He commented on the yelling and the chanting and 
said it is ambiguous as to how you can enforce that. He asked the City Attorney to address that piece. 
 
Mr. Soper said he has advised the Council on the difficulty they have had with the ordinance provision 
and the exposure perhaps with the City with enforcing the current ordinance provisions. He said he is 
reluctant to discuss the details in a public forum for obvious reasons but is willing to discuss the concern 
individually or in small groups outside of this setting. He noted that Sherwood is not the only community 
facing this challenge in terms of dealing with the protester groups and with the challenges of trying to use 
law enforcement to control those groups. He said Beaverton is having the same difficulty in terms of code 
enforcement. He stated there are a couple things the City can do. He said there are a couple of issues 
with the current noise ordinance and said staff will be bringing to Council a new and improved noise 
ordinance hopefully at the January 19 City Council meeting. He said he is also coordinating with the 
Beaverton City Attorney and the District Attorney’s office to discuss possible criminal prosecutions. He 

stated the DA’s office has been reluctant to do that with the individuals that were arrested in Beaverton 

but that is something they are coordinating. He said they are also coordinating with Beaverton and 
looking internally at a residential picketing ordinance.  
 
Mayor Clark thanked staff for the update and said she also moved to Sherwood for the safe and livable 
community. She said the Council wants to be solution oriented and said she would like to direct staff to 
come back with a residential picketing ordinance and continue their efforts with the DA’s office with the 

possibility of prosecution for repeat offenders and fixing the noise ordinance and bring it back to Council. 
She asked if Council agrees with her direction. Council agreed.  
 
Mr. Gall said that working closely with the neighbors and the residents is important. He stated the livability 
of this community is being challenged mainly by outsiders. He said this is not normal for Sherwood. He 
stated there have been citations issued in Beaverton that have been thrown out and he noted that a 
citation will not solve this problem and they will come back. He said in some regard if we start issuing 
citations there may be more protesters and it could get worse. He requested that as we continue with this 
issue we need good communication with the residents. He acknowledged the citizens frustration. 
 
*Recorders note: comments were received from the audience. 

 

12



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 11 of 23 

Mayor Clark said we need to find a solution and fix the problem together. She said she understands the 
frustration and said they will move forward. 
 
Councilor King apologized for not responding to Mr. Roberts email and said because of the sensitivity of 
the situation he did not have a full picture to be able to discuss the issue. He said he is now aware of 
everything that has occurred and the timeline and said we will address the problem. He noted that the 
City has not faced this issue before and he wished it could be addressed tonight but it will take a little time 
and he asked for patience to find a solution and regain trust. He apologized for what the residents have 
endured and said it is frustrating.  
 
Councilor Henderson said ordinances take time to adopt and there is a reason for that and she asked 
Captain Hanlon and Mr. Soper what will happen the next time these protesters come. She stated that 
there are only two officers on duty during the evening and said it takes 2 ½ hours to process a DUI. She 
said there may not be backups readily available and she predicts that more protesters will be coming 
once this story is in the media. She asked what kind of response can the Police Department give to these 
citizens in the interim as the Council adopts a residential picketing ordinance and amends the noise 
ordinance. She said she is concerned with increased protest activity resulting in more frustration from the 
residents. 
 
Mayor Clark asked if the police have the ability to make arrest. 
 
Captain Hanlon clarified the difference between a violation and a crime. He said the City ordinance is a 
violation and no different than a speeding ticket. He said if they are trespassing or there is disorderly 
conduct they can be arrested for a misdemeanor and taken to jail. He stated he would rather not discuss 
tactics in a public forum and said they are trying to be creative and the situation is always evolving and 
the group is a grassroots organization that is getting a lot of support and trying to stay ahead of them is 
problematic. He said they have been focusing on trying to identify the ones using the bullhorns and cite 
them. He stated the police want to enforce what they can and they want to do it in a safe manner. He 
reiterated that we don’t know these people and rogue people get involved in protests and there will be 
more wanting to join. He said in Beaverton the protesters are wearing masks to conceal their identity and 
they have not done that in Sherwood yet. 
 
Recorder note: comments from the audience stated the protesters have worn masks in Sherwood. 

 
Captain Hanlon apologized and said he has not seen those wearing masks. He assured the citizens that 
they are trying to address the issue and have put up cameras every week to try to capture images of the 
protesters.  
 
Council President Harris referred to comments from Mr. Roberts that on December 6 a call was made at 
9:50 pm and the police were dispatched at 11:04 pm and arrived at 11:07 pm and asked if that is normal 
to have a lag between the call and when the police are dispatched.  
 
Captain Hanlon replied that a call was received from Mr. Campbell at 11:03:07 pm and dispatch received 
the information at 11:03:52 pm and dispatched at 11:04:18 pm and arrived at 11:07:44 pm.  
 
Council President Harris suggested the time discrepancy may be a clock issue. She referred to the video 
that she saw where the officer got every license plate number and asked if those plates were run.  

13



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 12 of 23 

Captain Hanlon said the police know who they are and some needed clarification so they worked with the 
City of Beaverton. 
 
Council President Harris clarified the process and asked if after the police ran the license plates did they 
locate the protesters.  
 
Captain Hanlon replied that over half of the people are from Washington and northeast Portland. He said 
the police are trying to be in the neighborhood as a deterrent and they are documented 144 times they 
have had extra patrols in the area.  
 
Council President Harris asked about disorderly conduct regarding this situation. 
 
Mr. Soper noted that disorderly conduct is what the protesters in Beaverton were arrested for and the DA 
dismissed those charges and he said that is specifically what they are working with the DA on to see if we 
can prosecute for disorderly conduct.  
 
Captain Hanlon said they have looked at disorderly conduct and are open to creative options. 
 
Councilor Kuiper asked if a citation can be issued based on a video or does the officer have to witness 
the act. 
 
Captain Hanlon said it depends and the violation and if they can identify. He said that has been the 
challenge to catch the protesters in the act. He stated they do not want families coming out of their homes 
and confronting the protesters and noted they are to that point. 
 
Mayor Clark asked if Council agrees that staff has clear direction. Councilor Kuiper said the sooner the 
better. 
 
Mayor Clark called for a recess at 8:50 pm and reconvened at 9:00 pm. 
 
Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda and the City Recorder read the public hearing 
statement. 

  
9.  PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
A. Ordinance 2015-009 Amending the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Map to redesignate an 

approximately three-acre parcel from neighborhood commercial to medium density residential 

low  
 

Associate Planner Connie Randall provided a presentation (see record, Exhibit B) and reminded the 
Council that this public hearing was continued from December 1, 2015 and is the second of two required 
public hearing prior to the adoption of the ordinance. She highlighted the required findings based on the 
Planning Commission recommendation. She stated the applicant is requesting a Comprehensive Plan 
and Zoning Map amendment for a three acre parcel of land located at the southeast corners of Edy and 
Elwert Road from Neighborhood Commercial (NC) to Medium Density Residential Low (MDRL). She said 
the Council is being asked what uses are most appropriate on this three acre site. She said the subject 
site is an active farm and has an existing single family residence and an associated outbuilding and is 

14



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 13 of 23 

part of a larger 21.28 acre parent parcel. She said the site is bisected from north to south in an arching 
manner by a tributary to Chicken Creek which creates a pocket of developable land adjacent to Elwert 
Road. She said the site was brought into the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) in 2002 as part of Area 59 
and the Area 59 Concept Plan was adopted by the City Council in 2007 and applied the current land use 
and zoning designation that we have today.   
 
She said the required findings are outlined in Section 16.80.030 of the Zoning and Community 
Development Code. She stated the first requirement is there needs to be a demonstrated need for the 
proposed use and zoning. She referred to comments from December 1, 2015 regarding the finding that 
there is 46 acres of deficit within the City and what was described as a guaranteed land supply. She said 
what is meant by that is the amount of land that the City Council could approve for development and 
because Sherwood is a voter approved annexation City, the City Council does not have the authority to 
grant development rights to areas that are within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) but have not been 
annexed into the City. She said there are 52 acres designated for MDRL within Brookman and other 
unincorporated areas plus there is one 15 acre lot inside the City with split zoning. She clarified that the 
deficit is really between 52 and 67 acres. She said based on that discussion there is a demonstrated 
need for the proposed use. 
 
She said the proposed amendment is timely. She said with respect to this finding there is an established 
residential development pattern in the area and there are plans and expectations for public utilities to be 
expanded to this parcel when development occurs. She stated there has been a change in transportation 
facilities for that area and noted that Area 59 proposed crossing the tributary for a local road-street 
connection connecting Elwert and Copper Terrace and that is no longer proposed due to the extensive 
cost to the City. She said the connection was moved further south. She said absent the planned 
connectivity between the subject site and the adjacent residential neighborhoods, the site is left isolated 
and detached from the neighborhoods and the neighborhood commercial development which it was 
intended to serve. She said this is a timely response to that change. She noted other MDRL zoned 
properties are unavailable or unsuited for immediate development.  She stated the proposed amendment 
does not significantly affect the functional classification of a local, county, regional or state transportation 
facility. She said the proposed residential uses is anticipated to generate 1,860 fewer weekday peak hour 
vehicle trips than would be expected if it were developed NC. She clarified that this is comparing 3 acres 
of NC to 3 acres of MDRL. She said the proposed amendment would allow for better site planning for 
residential neighborhoods to take advantage of the adjacent Chicken Creek tributary consistent with the 
goal of the Comprehensive Plan and the Transportation System Plan as well as Metro and State 
Standards. She said consequently based on the findings of fact the Planning Commission recommended 
approval of PA 15-04.  
 
Mayor Clark asked if Council had any questions.  
 
Council President Harris asked if anything has changed since the first hearing. Ms. Randal stated that 
nothing has changed and there have not been any additional written comments from the public. 
 
Mayor Clark opened the public hearing. 
 
Mimi Doukas with AKS Engineering came forward as a representative for the applicant, Venture 
Properties. She stated this zone was aspirational from the concept planning effort in Area 59. She said 
the property is not appropriate for NC as staff pointed out based on the locational factor that it is clear at 

15



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 14 of 23 

the edge of town and the limited access and will not have the ability to serve the small neighborhood 
surrounding it. She noted the City has an excess supply of NC currently and only one site is need based 
on the Comprehensive Plan criteria. She said the site as designed is too large based on the NC 
standards and all the permitted uses under NC are also permitted within the other commercial zones in 
the City. She said the site is not appropriate for NC and there is a demonstrated need for residential 
property and development within Sherwood. She said this is an appropriate request and they request 
approval. 
 
Eugene Stewart, Sherwood property owner said this is the second parcel to be taken out of NC and it 
seems like one of the desires of the Comprehensive Plan was to provide NC so that citizens would not 
have to go to the big box store areas. He said it seems like this will add more trips into the core area 
which is already congested. He asked if there is any thought to developing a NC where there is a use 
where a person could have their own business located in the same dwelling. He said if you take out that 
NC the trips will move to another area of the City. He said this needs more research and they need to 
determine what the real reason was for NC. He commented regarding the possibility of home businesses 
and a need to be creative. He said Sherwood keeps increasing the residential area but not increasing the 
commercial and industrial lands and there needs to be a balance so that the property taxes can be 
reasonable. He asked what the County is planning for the road. He has heard it will be 5 lanes and Roy 
Rogers will be 5 lanes. He said there are goals for the NC and does this meet them. 
 
Ms. Doukas replied that staff discussed the need for NC and it was not their initial reaction to instantly 
agree to remove NC. She said staff viewed the application with skepticism as well. She said they 
understood the importance of NC especially on the north side of Hwy 99. She stated the challenge is this 
particular piece of property does not make sense for NC because of access and the market area. She 
noted that the size for NC is intended to be a 1 acre site and this is a 3 acre site. She referred to the 
comments regarding live work units and said there is a land use process for that which does not require a 
zone change. She suggested the City further discuss NC and determine the right way to integrate it into 
the community.    
 
With no further comments Mayor Clark closed the public hearing. 
 
Ms. Randall addressed the live work issue and stated all of the commercial zones allow for residential 
units. She said the residential zones allow for home based businesses and occupations. She commented 
on economic development strategies and referred to the previous discussion on Goal 9 which specifically 
talks about economic development and how it relates to this particular property. She stated when they did 
the analysis it showed that historically NC is not well utilized in the City and currently there are only 1.03 
acres of NC that has been developed. She said this 3 acre parcel would need to be parceled to be 
developed in accordance with the code as NC is limited to 1 acre. She said the other NC zone in the UGB 
is located in the Brookman area. She said the City could consider if NC is located appropriately and being 
utilized. She noted there is intent to update the Comprehensive Plan which was last updated in 1991. She 
said with respect to this property, it does not meet the intent of the current code. 
 
Mayor Clark asked for Council questions. With no questions from the Council Mayor Clark asked for a 
motion. 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR ROBINSON TO READ CAPTION AND ADOPT ORDINANCE 2015-009 

AMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND ZONING MAP TO REDESIGNATE AN 

16



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 15 of 23 

APPROXIMATELY THREE-ACRE PARCEL FROM NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL TO MEDIUM 

DENSITY RESIDENTIAL LOW IN ACCORDANCE WITH OUR SECOND READING AND ALL 

EVIDENCE RECEIVED, SECONDED BY COUNCIL PRESIDENT HARRIS. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL 

MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 
Mayor Clark addressed the next agenda item. 
 
B. Ordinance 2016-001 Repealing Chapter 3.25 Marijuana Tax First Reading 

 

City Attorney Josh Soper said this is the first of three marijuana related ordinances before the Council. He 
stated this ordinance repeals the existing Chapter 3.25 Marijuana Tax that the City enacted prior to the 
voted of Measure 91. He said the theory was that if you enacted the tax before Measure 91 they may 
have been grandfathered in after Measure 91 was approved and he noted the opposite occurred and the 
legislature clarified Measure 91 and explicitly preempted local taxes except if a specific procedure was 
followed to impose a tax up to 3% on recreational sales. He said this ordinance is simply to repeal the 
existing ordinance that has been preempted by a state law.  
 
Mayor Clark opened the public hearing. With no comments received Mayor Clark closed the public 
hearing. Mr. Soper clarified that this was a first reading. The following motion was stated. 
 

MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT HARRIS TO APPROVE ORDINANCE 2016-001 REPEALING 

CHAPTER 3.25 MARIJUANA TAX AND PLACE IT ON THE NEXT AVAILABLE CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA FOR ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT AND CONSIDERATION, SECONDED BY MAYOR 

CLARK. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 

Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda. 

 

C. Ordinance 2016-002 Declaring a Ban on Medical Marijuana Processing Sites, Medical 

Marijuana Dispensaries, Recreational Marijuana Producers, Recreational Marijuana 

Processors, Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, and Recreational Marijuana Retailers; 

Referring Ordinance; and Declaring An Emergency  
 
City Attorney Josh Soper said this ordinance is one of two items that were discussed at a Council work 
session in November and staff was direct to bring an ordinance before the Council for further discussion 
and possible adoption. He stated this would prohibit the establishment of the listed facilities within the City 
limits. He said the City has the option to ban all of the categories of facilities or just some of the facilities 
or none of the facilities. He stated the ordinance was drafted to include all the possible facilities that could 
be banned. He said the same bill that allows for bans of these facilities also provides the mechanism for 
imposing a 3% local tax. He noted if you have a ban you cannot also have a tax, even if you just ban one 
category you cannot tax another category and the City will also lose out on sharing of the State tax 
revenue under the distribution scheme. He stated Council can place both a ban and a tax on the same 
ballot and said if both are on the ballot the ballot title has to clearly state that if the ban passes the tax will 
not go into effect even if the tax passes by a larger percentage. He noted that if the ban ordinance passes 
now and is referred to the November 2016 ballot it would in the meantime act as a moratorium. He stated 
tJanuary 4, 2016 was the first day that OLCC started accepting applications for these recreational 

17



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 16 of 23 

marijuana facilities. He said if this ordinance is passed, OLCC will not issue any permits for any of these 
facilities. He stated that is why this ordinance has an emergency clause and said if Council decides to 
place a ban on the ballot he recommends passing the ordinance in a single hearing unanimously on an 
emergency basis so it goes into effect before OLCC issues any permits. He stated medical marijuana 
dispensaries and medical marijuana processors are grandfathered if they have complied with the steps 
outlined in the staff report.  
   
Mayor Clark opened the public hearing. 
 
Joe Cansani, Sherwood resident came forward and stated his wife has a medical marijuana grow. He 
referred to the recreational sales and observed that the state passed two separate laws regarding 
medical and recreational sales. He said the state passed the medical marijuana legislation because there 
was a need for people to have medicine. He stated the recreational law was passed in part because of 
the large black market and in part because there is such a large percentage of the citizenry that wants to 
recreationally use the product. He said the recreational law can help shut down the black market. He 
commented on the potential revenue that will be generate and discussed arguments for a ban. He said 
there is already a thriving cannabis use culture here regardless. He asked if having a ban in the City 
would have a deterrent effect at all when it is available in neighboring communities.  He referred to the 
nuisances claims and said he has heard they were based on misinformation. He stated his empirical 
studies of the dispensaries have shown that they are quietly run operations and there is no nuisance to 
the local community. He stated the effect of shutting down the black market also has the effect of 
reducing teen use. He said teens across the nation say it is easier to buy cannabis than it is to buy 
cigarettes.   
 
Toan Ngo, 7706 SW Barnes Road, Portland approached the Council and stated he represents Midori LLC 
which is a business that is seeking an OLCC processor license in Sherwood. He commented on the 
positive effects a cannabis related business can have on Sherwood. He said he is currently working with 
the OHA, OLCC, ODA, and USDA to make sure that everything he makes meets the highest standards. 
He stated if Sherwood imposes a ban it will not only put all legitimate business owners and their 
employees out of work and will serve to nourish the black market. He said a ban would do more harm 
than good because those that would violate the law would not bother to follow any health regulations. He 
noted that if Sherwood imposes a ban people will leave the City to buy elsewhere and Sherwood would 
lose the money associated with cannabis and the additional money that those individuals would spend on 
other entertainment in town. He referred to attitudes changing and leaning more towards legalization and 
said if Sherwood bans what people already want the City will lose time, money and effort. He invited the 
Council to visit his facility.  
 
Tony Bevel, Sherwood resident came forward and referred to the emergency clause and asked if it 
serves the City to ban marijuana when you can buy alcohol and cigarettes in the stores. He said 
Sherwood has won many awards and asked if there will be awards for banning marijuana. He 
commented on the youth in our community and said he does not believe these dispensaries would 
consider selling marijuana to youth. He asked if it makes common sense to ban marijuana and he said he 
does not think so.  
 
Sheri Ralston, Sherwood resident approached the Council and said she is a cannabis user. She said she 
decided to open a medical marijuana dispensary and the paperwork is almost finished with the County. 

18



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 17 of 23 

She said she hopes to open in the next three months and supports the 3% tax and the revenue will 
support the local community and the police department. She said the next step is to pursue a recreational 
marijuana license so she can serve the rest of the community. She noted the location is not next to 
residential property and is away from everything else. She commented on the benefits of having medical 
and recreational sales together so the police can monitor one location. She said there is a rumor that 
OLCC will eventually do that. She stated currently the Council is considering not allowing recreational 
retail sales, processing, and producing licenses and the options are regulating, putting it to a public vote 
or outright banning. She said in reviewing cannabis information the state law was passed in November 
2014 to legalize cannabis and to regulate the industry. She stated one of the main reasons that law was 
passed was so that cannabis could be regulated. She commented on the option and said banning 
cannabis businesses in Sherwood will stop retail processing and producing businesses and asked if this 
will stop these things from occurring in Sherwood. She said quite possibly not because there is a portion 
of Sherwood addresses in unincorporated Washington County and Washington County is allowing grow 
sites and processing. She said the county already has 10 land capability marijuana farm applications 
turned in yesterday and there are already 2 large grow sites in unincorporated Washington County with a 
Sherwood address. She said there is a good chance those grow sites will apply for a recreational license.     
 
Jeff Roberts, Sherwood resident approached the Council in support of the ban and said this sends that 
wrong message and the community does not want the money from these surfaces. He said the people 
producing don’t live here and as a community he would rather get money from businesses that support 
the community and families. He said we are the society and we decide what that is. He state is supports a 
ban along with many people that could not attend tonight. He said he welcomes other community services 
and businesses that will build and protect families. He stated that once marijuana is here and its influence 
it is tough to remove.    
 
Andy Jensen, Sherwood resident came forward and said he is in support of banning these activities at 
least for recreational marijuana. He said this sends the right message about the values of our City and 
community and it sends the right message to our youth about the dangers of marijuana and other drugs. 
He said he is undecided about medical marijuana and said it is way too easy to get a medical marijuana 
card and much of the supposed medical use is recreational. He stated this won’t prohibit recreational use 

of marijuana in Sherwood but will keep the business portion out of Sherwood. He noted they can drive 3 
miles up the road to buy product. He said not having recreational sales in town would be a positive 
influence. He referred to the argument to live with the sales and benefit from the state tax revenues from 
recreational marijuana as well as imposing a local tax. He stated this is wasting an opportunity to stand 
for what is best for our youth and community than trading it for some unclear and undetermined minor 
financial benefit while endorsing use of a proven detrimental and dangerous drug and a proven gateway 
to other drugs and crime. He urged the Council to put a resolution on the November 2016 ballot to ban 
these activities and impose a moratorium until that time. He provided the names of Sherwood residents 
who have expressed to him their support of this and were unable to be at the meeting. He read the 
following names: Roger and Heidi Cluff, Adam and Sarah Cluff, Casey Lesh, John Bousher, Kelly 
Bowers, Brent and Christian Chickoski, Ryan Wright, Brian and Amy Boyton, Shane Maylan, Jeff Roberts, 
Steven T. Ramos, Thad and Wendy Miller, Bill and Traci Butterfield, Chris and Lenea Bishop, Scott and 
Tracy Edington, Cory and Sue World, Daniel and Jennifer Messimer, Jim and Melony Schaffer, Luke and 
Stephanie Curtis and others. 
 
Record Note: Spelling of names were not provided. 

 

19



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 18 of 23 

Angie Allred, Sherwood resident approached the Council and provided a history of prohibition and the 
similarities between the prohibition of alcohol and marijuana. She said there are misconceptions. She 
said during the prohibition people were allowed to brew their own for home use. She stated the law was 
passed but did not go into effect for a year so people could stock pile alcohol. She noted it was not 
impossible to get alcohol just more difficult. She said alcohol consumption did decline dramatically during 
prohibition and went down 30-50%. She stated cirrhosis death rates for men were 29.5 per 100,000 in 
1911 before prohibition and in 1929 the death rates were 10.7 per 100,000. She said the admission to 
state mental hospitals for alcoholic psychosis went from 10.1 per 100,000 in 1919 to 4.7 per 100,000 in 
1928. She said arrests for public drunkenness declined 50% between 1916 and 1922. She stated violent 
crime did not rise during prohibition and organized crime was not the result of prohibition as it existed 
before and after. She said after prohibition was repealed alcohol consumption increased although it is still 
lower than pre-prohibition. She noted that making things harder to get does make a difference. She 
commented on statistics and said a year and a half in Colorado is not enough time to determine that the 
youth numbers have not changed. She said money is not everything and should not play into the 
conversation when determining what is right for our community and our kids. She said this is a safe 
community that people come to raise their kids.  
 
With no further comments, Mayor Clark closed the public hearing.  
 
Councilor Robinson thanked the seven citizens for their testimony on this subject. She said her emphasis, 
whether it be medical marijuana or recreational marijuana, has been on Measure 91 and whether it was 
approved by voters in Sherwood. She said the statistics at that time showed that none of the three 
districts in Sherwood passed Measure 91. She stated her position has always been that so far as we 
know as a Council that represents the community that the answer for those who voted is the majority of 
us in the community did not want medical or recreational marijuana here. She said that has been her 
concern when discussing whether to allow and it remains her position that it is important to get more than 
just seven opinions about whether to ban or tax medical or recreational marijuana. She supports putting 
the issue on the ballot in order to get the input from the public and hopefully there will be a record turnout. 
She said it does not preclude us from allowing recreational and medical marijuana retail, grow sites, 
processing, etc. in the future. She said the resolution will ban it currently and put the issue on the ballot in 
November and that is her preference. She noted that this will allow us to listen to the voters and also 
allow others to struggle with the complexities that will naturally occur and the inherent problems that are 
present in states like Colorado and Washington. She stated that an emergency is needed to institute a 
ban so that we don’t have some businesses come and get grandfathered in when the ban takes place. 

She said it is cleaner to ban it and make a moratorium until November and deal with the will of the people 
in November. 
 
Councilor King stated that he needed to leave the meeting for work. 
 
Mr. Soper clarified that if Council adopts as an emergency it has to be a unanimous vote.   
 
Mayor Clark asked if Council would consider entertaining an emergency vote or deliberate. 
 
Councilor Henderson said she has questions. 
 
Mayor Clark said if they deliberate and Councilor King needs to leave they will not be able to declare an 
emergency. Council agreed to try to deliberate before he needed to leave. 

20



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 19 of 23 

 
Councilor Henderson commented that medicinal marijuana has been in Oregon for a very long time so 
Measure 91 did not say that voters in Sherwood did not want medicinal marijuana and she sees this as 
two different issues and recommended putting them separately on the ballot to give voters the choice. 
She said it is confusing and referred to how they separated the Charter Amendments on the ballot. She 
said with the State allowing recreational sales at medicinal dispensaries if this ban is passed does it affect 
Ms. Ralston’s proposed medical marijuana dispensary.  
 
Mr. Soper said the requirements for medical marijuana dispensaries to be grandfathered are that they 
have applied to be registered or have registered with OHA and successfully completed their land use 
application process if applicable.  
 
Ms. Hajduk said she assumes the first is in process and said that she has completed the land use 
process.  
 
Mr. Soper asked Ms. Ralston if she had applied for her OHA registration and it was determined that she 
would be grandfathered. Mr. Soper reminded the Council that if this ordinance is adopted the only thing 
that would be grandfathered is her medical marijuana dispensary. Mr. Soper said there are currently not 
any medical marijuana processors operating in Sherwood.  
 
Planning Manager Brad Kilby stated there is a medical marijuana processor in Sherwood on Galbreath in 
the general industrial zone. He said they came in yesterday and had their land use compatibility 
statement with the intent of applying to the State for a recreational grow.  
 
Councilor Henderson asked if the grows can be next to each other.  
 
Mr. Soper said we are discussing a processor and not a grower and asked Mr. Kilby if that processor 
completed any applicable local land use applications.  
 
Mr. Kilby said we don’t have anything set up. 
 
Councilor Henderson asked when does the Governor’s executive order that allows recreational sales at 

medical marijuana dispensaries end. Mr. Soper said that was a legislative action and it ends December 
31, 2016.  
 
Councilor Henderson referred to the processor that Mr. Kilby mentioned and asked if they would be 
grandfathered. Mr. Soper said assuming they have an OHA permit.  
 
Mr. Kilby said he assumes they have an OHA permit as they are in operation now.  
 
Council President Harris stated that she would not support a ban on any of them and the vote will 
probably not be unanimous.   
 
Councilor Henderson suggested letting Councilor King know that he can leave and there is no point in 
trying to do an emergency clause if you are going to vote nay and that negates the unanimous.     
 

21



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 20 of 23 

Council President Harris commented on the benefits of medical marijuana and said it is not easy to get a 
medical marijuana card and it is not inexpensive. She said it is much easier to get cannabis from the 
black market then from a licensed dispensary. She said the dispensaries are vigilant and cautious about 
whom they sell to compared to the Sherwood liquor store. She stated it is easy to get alcohol and tobacco 
in Sherwood and those are licensed stores. She commented on dispensaries in the first seven to ten 
years people will be frightened of breaking the law. She said the dispensary owners have enough 
customers and do not need to sell to minors. She commented on the amount of money it takes to open a 
dispensary and it is not easy and for the most part the people that are opening them are not typically 
associated with drug use and crime. She said they are people that have been using cannabis medically 
for years and have benefitted and want it to be available to people who need it. She commented on the 
dispensary in King City and the improvements that have been made to the building. She said marijuana 
has proven to not be a gateway drug. She stated the two primary gateways are low income and the 
wrong circle of friends. She said when meth and cocaine addicts were questioned, the number one drug 
they did before was tobacco and then alcohol. She said people doing cannabis will not be doing meth. 
She stated causation is not the same as correlation and maybe cannabis could have a correlation with 
other drugs such as tobacco which kills more people than cannabis. She commented on the information 
out there on both sides. She said cannabis has been used throughout the world and is life changing. She 
stated to ban it is cruel to those that need it. She said she will not support any bans and will support the 
3% tax. 
 
Mayor Clark agreed with Councilor Henderson that there is too much lumped together in this ordinance 
and would like staff to bring back two ordinances with one banning medical marijuana and one banning 
recreational marijuana. She said she would vote against this as written. 
 
Mr. Soper said he can prepare something for the next meeting. 
 
Mayor Clark asked if the Council needs to approve the first reading to move to the second reading or do 
they direct staff to bring back an additional first reading of two new ordinances.  
 
Mr. Soper recommended that if the majority of the Council wants to move forward in looking at banning 
they should approve as written and he will bring amendments to the next meeting. 
 
Councilor Robinson recommended approving the ordinance stated and deleting all of the language 
having to do with an immediate ban and merely referring it to the voters.  
 
Mayor Clark said now we have two ordinances and we need to remove the emergency clause. 
 
Mr. Soper said if the ordinance in not passed unanimously tonight then at the next hearing the emergency 
language will not pertain.  
 
Councilor King said we need to approve something tonight so Council can proceed to the second reading.  
 
Mayor Clark asked if it fails it will not return to Council. 
 
Mr. Soper said if the ordinance is not passed tonight the Council will start over with a first reading at the 
next Council meeting and then a second reading two weeks later so a month long process. 
 

22



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 21 of 23 

Councilor Robinson said that if Council identifies what to revise in the version before them tonight that it 
be approved subject to clarification that it will be split into two ordinances and removing the emergency 
clause thereby allowing Council have a second reading at the next meeting. 
 
Mr. Soper said he can’t state conclusively that Council can do two separate ordinances at this point so if 

that is the condition of approval it may be difficult. 
 
Councilor Harris asked if the categories are all together because if you ban one you don’t receive any of 

the revenue. 
 
Mr. Soper said HB 3400 as he recalls said the City may pass an ordinance prohibiting these activities and 
he said it may have been envisioned that there would be one ordinance banning whichever activities the 
City decided to prohibit. He said it was not envisioned to have two separate ordinances.  
 
Councilor Kuiper said if you can ban a number of the activities why couldn’t you have two separate 
ordinances.  
 
Mr. Soper said that is more likely than not but is hesitate to have the Council approve the ordinance with 
that as a stipulation if it turns out that it is not the case and we have to start over with a first reading. 
 
Mr. Gall clarified that Council is directing staff to split the ordinance to ban medical uses versus 
recreational uses.  
 
Mayor Clark said that is what she is hearing from Council. 
 
Councilor Henderson agreed and said she is not 100% in favor of banning medicinal but is 100% in favor 
of banning recreational and in favor of putting both on the ballot and letting the voters decide. She said 
these are not the same issue. 
 
Councilor Kuiper said if Council does split the ordinance and any of the bans pass it negates the need for 
a 3% tax on the ballot.  
 
Mr. Soper said there is no tax on medical marijuana and it is only on recreational marijuana. 
 
Mr. Soper reminded the Council that they will be voting in favor of the motion and not to approve the 
ordinance and place it on the ballot. He said it occurs to him if there are now going to be two ordinances 
the second ordinance will have to have a first hearing so he recommended the Council amend the 
ordinance to strike all the language pertaining to medical dispensaries and the emergency clause and 
move it forward with just the recreational facilities then that ordinance can have a second hearing on 
January 19 and there can be a first hearing on an ordinance pertaining to banning medical marijuana.  
 
MOTION: FROM MAYOR CLARK TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2016-002 TO STRIKE THE STATEMENT 

ON MEDICAL MARIJUANA PROCESSING SITES, MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES AND 

DECLARING AND EMERGENCY, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR HENDERSON. 

 
Councilor Henderson asked if that motion is satisfactory to move the legislation forward.  
 

23



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 22 of 23 

MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 

MOTION: FROM MAYOR CLARK TO APPROVE ORDINANCE 2016-002 DECLARING A BAN ON 

RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA PRODUCERS, RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA PROCESSORS, 

RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA WHOLESALERS, AND RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA RETAILERS 

REFERRING ORDINANCE AND PLACING IT ON THE NEXT AVAILABLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

AGENDA FOR ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT AND CONSIDERATION, SECONDED BY 

COUNCILOR ROBINSON. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 

Councilor Harris clarified that this will go to a second reading and there will be a first reading on the new 
ordinance. Mr. Soper said yes, assuming we can do that.  
 
Mayor Clark addressed the next agenda item. 

 

D. Ordinance 2016-003 Imposing a Three Percent Tax on the sale of Marijuana items by a 

Marijuana Retailer and Referring Ordinance 

 

MOTION: FROM MAYOR CLARK TO APPROVE ORDINANCE 2016-003 IMPOSING A THREE 

PERCENT TAX ON THE SALE OF MARIJUANA ITEMS BY A MARIJUANA RETAILER AND 

REFERRING ORDINANCE AND PLACE IT ON THE NEXT AVAILABLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

AGENDA FOR ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT AND CONSIDERATION. 

 

The City Recorder asked if the Council was planning on holding a public hearing on the ordinance. 
 
Mr. Soper said the Council needs to open the public hearing. 
 
Mayor Clark withdrew her motion and opened the public hearing. With no public comments received,  
Mayor Clark closed the public hearing and stated the following motion. 
 
MOTION: FROM MAYOR CLARK TO APPROVE ORDINANCE 2016-003 IMPOSING A THREE 
PERCENT TAX ON THE SALE OF MARIJUANA ITEMS BY A MARIJUANA RETAILER AND 
REFERRING ORDINANCE AND PLACE IT ON THE NEXT AVAILABLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
AGENDA FOR ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT AND CONSIDERATION, SECONDED BY 
COUNCILOR KUIPER. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 
 
Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda. 

 

9.  CITY MANAGER REPORT: 

 
Mr. Gall said due to the time he had nothing to report.  
 
Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda. 
 

10. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 

Mayor Clark stated that due to the lateness of the meeting she requested Council hold their comments to 
the next meeting. 

24



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
January 5, 2016 
Page 23 of 23 

     
11. ADJOURN: 

 
Mayor Clark adjourned the meeting at 10:20 pm. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Attest: 
 
               
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder    Krisanna Clark, Mayor 

25



 

Resolution 2016-002, Staff Report 
January 19, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: January 19, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
Through: N/A 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2016-002, Extending the Term of the Franchise Agreement 

between City of Sherwood and Comcast 
 

 
Issue: 

Shall the City Council approve extending the term of the current franchise agreement with 
Comcast? 
 
Background: 

The City of Sherwood granted a cable services franchise agreement to TCI of Tualatin Valley, Inc 
on February 24, 2000. This current cable franchise is now held by Comcast of Oregon II 
(“Comcast”). Back in March 2012, Comcast informed the City of Sherwood of their interest in 
renewing their cable franchise. Due to the complexity and time dedicated to ongoing franchise 
negotiations with the Metropolitan Area Cable Commission, which handles cable franchises for 
fifteen different jurisdictions in Washington and Clackamas Counties, Comcast and the City have 
only recently initiated informal negotiations in late 2014.  
 
The current cable franchise was extended for one year on January 20, 2015 by Resolution 2015-
004.  Since then staff has met with Comcast on several occasions to discuss this franchise and 
have largely agreed on all negotiation points. However, one item still remains unresolved and staff 
is requesting a short 3 month extension to get this final item resolved. Section 2.3 of the current 
cable franchise does allow for an extension of the term of the franchise.   
 

Financial Impacts: 

No additional financial impacts are anticipated in response to City Council approval of this 
resolution. 
 
Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully recommends City Council approval of Resolution 2016-002 extending the term of 
the Franchise Agreement between City of Sherwood and Comcast. 
 
 
 

26



DRAFT 

Resolution 2016-002 
January 19, 2016 
Page 1 of 2, with Exhibit A (1 pg) 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2016-002 
 

EXTENDING THE TERM OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
CITY OF SHERWOOD AND COMCAST  

 
WHEREAS, Comcast of Oregon II (“Comcast”) currently holds a cable services franchise agreement 
with the City of Sherwood with an effective date of February 24, 2000 and expiration date of January 
31, 2015; and 
 

WHEREAS, by a letter dated March 6, 2012, Comcast initiated the renewal process under Section 
626 of the Cable Act and reserved its statutory rights related thereto; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City and Comcast began informal negotiations in December 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City required more time to complete the required ascertainment process and 
franchise negotiations and requested an extension on January 20, 2015 by Resolution 2015-004; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 2.3 of the current City Franchise allows for an extension of the term of the 
agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and Comcast met on several occasions and came to an agreement on nearly all 
negotiation points with the exception of one item; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and Comcast have determined that it is in both parties’ best interests to extend 

the term of the City Franchise from January 31, 2016 through April 30, 2016 to allow for additional 
time for negotiations and a formal extension will be entered into between parties to that effect. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The current City Franchise is extended to April 30, 2016, as indicated in the attached 
Exhibit A, Franchise Extension Agreement. 

 
Section 2. All provisions of the current City Franchise, other than the duration of the City 

Franchise as set forth in Section 2.3, shall remain in full force and effect through the 
extended date set forth herein. 

 
Section 3. The City and Comcast agree that execution of this extension does not waive any rights 

that either party has under Section 626 of the Cable Act. 
 

Section 4. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption.  

27



DRAFT 

Resolution 2016-002 
January 19, 2016 
Page 2 of 2, with Exhibit A (1 pg) 

 
Duly passed by the City Council this 19th day of January 2016. 

 
 
             
        Krisanna Clark, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

28



Exhibit A 
 
 

FRANCHISE EXTENSION AGREEMENT  
for the 

City of Sherwood/Comcast Cable Services Franchise Agreement 

 
 

WHEREAS, Comcast Oregon II (“Comcast”) currently holds a cable franchise with the City of Sherwood (“City”), with 

an effective date of February 24, 2000 and expiration date of January 31, 2015 (“City Franchise”); and 

 
WHEREAS, by letter dated March 6, 2012, Comcast initiated the renewal process under Section 626 of the Cable Act and 

reserved its statutory rights related thereto; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City and Comcast have been continuing to proceed with informal negotiations; And 

 

WHEREAS, the City required more time to complete the required ascertainment process and franchise negotiations and 

requested an extension on January 20, 2015 by Resolution 2015-004; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City and Comcast have determined that it is in both parties’ best interests to extend the term of the City 

Franchise again from January 31, 2016 through April 30, 2016 to allow for additional time for negotiations and a formal 

extension will be entered into between parties to that effect. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Comcast agree as follows: 

 

1.   The City Franchise shall be extended up to and through April 30, 2016. 

 
2.   All provisions of the City Franchise, other than the duration of the City Franchise as set forth in Section 2.3, 

shall remain in full force and effect through the extended date set forth herein. 

 
3.   The City and Comcast agree that execution of this extension does not waive any rights that either party has 

under Section 626 of the Cable Act. 

 
 

ACCEPTED this            day of January, 2016. 

 

 

City of Sherwood 
 

By:       
 

Joseph Gall, City Manager 
 

 

ACCEPTED this            day of January, 2016. 

 

Comcast Oregon II 

 

By:       

Print Name:     

Title:      

 

Resolution 2016-002, Exhibit A 
January 19, 2016, Page 1 of 1 29



 

Resolution 2016-003, Staff Report 
January 19, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: January 19, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
Through: Josh Soper, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2016-003, adjusting Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Rates 

 

 
Issue: 

Shall the City Council adjust the solid waste and recycling collection rates? 

 
Background: 

The City Council sets rates for all solid waste and recycling collections services as set forth in Sherwood 
Municipal Code 8.20.080.  The current solid waste and recycling collection rates have been in effect 
since January 1, 2014.  The Sherwood Municipal Code 8.20.040 grants exclusive solid waste 
management franchises within the City, and Sherwood Municipal Code 8.20.080 outlines the related 
factors and process to be followed by City Council to adjust solid waste and recycling collection rates. 
 
Pride Disposal, the sole franchisee for solid waste collection services in Sherwood has made a request 
for a rate adjustment per Sherwood Municipal Code 8.20.080(E)(1).  Similar to most cities in Washington 
County, the City of Sherwood aims to set a reasonable aggregate target profit of 8 percent to 12 percent 
annually for their solid waste franchisees.  The City has determined through an analysis of financial 
information from Pride Disposal that their aggregate profit rate for 2014 ranged from -1.63% to 7.99% 
depending upon type of collection service, with an overall aggregate rate of 6.10%. 
 
A work session reviewing the financial information was held with the Sherwood City Council on 
December 1, 2015.  The City Manager has reviewed the Rate Review Report compiled by Bell & 
Associates and concurs with the recommendation to adjust solid waste and recycling collection rates for 
an aggregate profit rate of 10 percent.  The proposed effective date for the new solid waste and recycling 
collection rates is March 1, 2016. 
  
Financial Impacts: 

There are no anticipated financial impacts to the city budget as a result of adoption of this proposed 
resolution. 
 
Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully recommends City Council adoption of Resolution 2016-003, adjusting the solid waste 
and recycling collection rates. 
 
Attachments: 

 Resolution 2016-003 
 Exhibit A, New Rate Schedule 

30



DRAFT 

Resolution 2016-003 
January 19, 2016 
Page 1 of 2, with Exhibit A (4 pgs) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2016-003 

 
ADJUSTING SOLID WASTE AND RECYCLING COLLECTION RATES 

 
WHEREAS, the current solid waste and recycling collection rates have been in effect since 
January 1, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood City Council sets rates for all solid waste collection services as set 
forth in Sherwood Municipal Code 8.20.080; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sherwood Municipal Code 8.20.060 provides for compensation to be paid by the 
City’s Solid Waste franchisees for the use of City streets in the form of solid waste franchise 
fees; and 
 
WHEREAS, Sherwood Municipal Code 8.20.040 grants exclusive solid waste management 
franchises within the City, and Sherwood Municipal Code 8.20.080 outlines the related factors 
and process to be followed by City Council to adjust solid waste and recycling collection rates; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Pride Disposal, the sole franchisee for solid waste collection services in Sherwood 
has made a request for a rate adjustment per Sherwood Municipal Code 8.20.080(E)(1); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood aims to set a reasonable aggregate target profit of 8 percent 
to 12 percent annually for its solid waste franchisees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined through an analysis of financial information from Pride 
Disposal that their aggregate profit rate for 2014 ranged from -1.63% to 7.99% depending upon 
type of collection service; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed the Rate Review Report compiled by Bell & 
Associates and concurs with the recommendation to adjust solid waste and recycling collection 
rates for an aggregate profit rate of 10 percent; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that the new solid waste and recycling collection rates 
should take effect on March 1, 2016; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Sherwood City Council hereby approves the new schedule of solid waste 

and recycling rates as contained in the attached Exhibit A. 
 
Section 2. The adjusted solid waste and recycling collection rates will take effect on March 

1, 2016 
 
Section 3. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption.  

31



DRAFT 

Resolution 2016-003 
January 19, 2016 
Page 2 of 2, with Exhibit A (4 pgs) 

 
Duly passed by the City Council this 19th day of January, 2016. 
 
 
        ______________________ 
        Krisanna Clark, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

32



City of Sherwood
New Residential Cart Collection Rates (effective March 1, 2016)

Service Level Current Rate New Rate

Cart Service
One 20 gallon cart 21.52$           23.50$           
One 35 gallon cart 23.65$           25.63$           
One 60 gallon cart 31.45$           33.43$           
One 90 gallon cart 39.31$           41.29$           
On-Call service 12.75$           13.34$           
Extra Can / 32 gallon Bag 5.75$             6.25$             
Extra Bag (small) 2.90$             3.10$             

Yard Debris Only 6.40$             7.39$             
Second Yard Debris Cart 6.40$             7.39$             
Yard Debris Extra 1.15$             2.15$             
Recycling Only 4.70$             5.69$             

Service Fees
Walk-in Fee 4.20$             4.55$             
SNP 25.00$           25.00$           
NSF 25.00$           25.00$           
Go Back Fee 13.80$           14.96$           

Bulky Item Pick Up
Special Services Fee (per Hour) 78.75$           85.34$           

Resolution 2016-003, Exhibit A 
January 19, 2016, Page 1 of 4 33



City of Sherwood
New Commercial Collection Rates (effective March 1, 2016)

Container One Two Three Four Five EOW One Two Three Four Five EOW
1 yard 100.92$     188.69$  273.04$  357.43$  442.01$  107.88$  201.71$   291.88$  382.09$  472.51$  

each additional 66.18         127.67    189.03    250.38   311.87   70.75     136.48     202.07   267.66   333.39   
1.5 yard 129.60       239.17    348.68    458.19   567.78   138.54   255.67     372.74   489.81   606.96   

each additional 91.67         178.17    264.65    351.12   437.64   98.00     190.46     282.91   375.35   467.84   
2 yard 155.12       289.73    424.35    558.96   693.57   94.86     165.82   309.72     453.63   597.53   741.43   101.41   

each additional 117.20       228.73    340.32    451.90   563.43   62.22     125.29   244.51     363.80   483.08   602.31   66.51     
3 yard 205.99       390.84    575.58    760.34   945.19   121.83   220.20   417.81     615.30   812.80   1,010.41 130.24   

each additional 168.07       329.82    491.55    653.29   815.05   86.16     179.67   352.58     525.47   698.37   871.29   92.11     
4 yard 256.89       491.98    726.87    961.76   1,196.84 145.81   274.62   525.93     777.02   1,028.12 1,279.42 155.87   

each additional 219.51       430.96    642.83    854.71   1,066.70 110.17   234.66   460.70     687.19   913.68   1,140.30 117.77   
5 yard 307.82       592.94    878.09    1,163.22 1,448.35 329.06   633.85     938.68   1,243.48 1,548.29

each additional 269.90       531.95    794.04    1,056.15 1,318.21 288.52   568.65     848.83   1,129.02 1,409.17
6 yard 358.46       693.83    1,029.10 1,364.36 1,699.74 193.63   383.19   741.70     1,100.11 1,458.50 1,817.02 206.99   

each additional 320.53       632.81    945.04    1,257.30 1,569.60 157.94   342.65   676.47     1,010.25 1,344.05 1,677.90 168.84   
8 yard 461.16       896.81    1,332.47 1,768.09 2,203.74 241.48   492.98   958.69     1,424.41 1,890.09 2,355.80 258.14   

each additional 423.25       835.80    1,248.42 1,661.04 2,073.59 206.34   452.45   893.47     1,334.56 1,775.65 2,216.67 220.58   

1 yard compacted 227.16       424.72    614.62    804.45   994.52 242.83   454.03     657.03   859.96   
2 yard compacted 349.16       652.19    955.18    1,258.18 1,560.53 373.25   697.19     1,021.09 1,344.99
3 yard compacted 463.68       879.76    1,295.60 1,711.49 2,126.68 495.67   940.46     1,385.00 1,829.58
4 yard compacted 578.24       1,107.41 1,636.13 2,164.83 2,692.89 618.14   1,183.82  1,749.02 2,314.20

Heavy Container One Two Three Four Five One Two Three Four Five
1 yard 111.46$     211.29$  308.20$  119.15$  225.87$   329.47$  

each additional n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
1.5 yard 154.11       282.23    438.26    566.67   694.01   164.74   301.70     468.50   605.77   741.90   

each additional 145.74       277.50    410.06    528.76   646.44   155.80   296.65     438.35   565.24   691.04   
2 yard 203.93       394.06    572.72    740.17   905.31   218.00   421.25     612.24   791.24   967.78   

each additional 191.36       362.75    520.94    670.95   819.20   204.56   387.78     556.88   717.25   875.72   
3 yard 278.15       535.08    774.56    997.81   1,231.91 297.34   572.00     828.00   1,066.66 1,316.91

each additional 264.06       511.50    746.32    978.97   1,208.33 282.28   546.79     797.82   1,046.52 1,291.70
4 yard 352.12       676.94    999.37    1,299.90 1,588.32 376.42   723.65     1,068.33 1,389.59 1,697.91

each additional 339.52       664.39    980.54    1,287.20 1,571.14 362.95   710.23     1,048.20 1,376.02 1,679.55
5. yard 421.63       825.37    1,219.33 1,601.38 1,957.45 450.72   882.32     1,303.46 1,711.88 2,092.51

each additional 413.50       801.82    1,183.98 1,557.66 1,918.28 442.03   857.15     1,265.67 1,665.14 2,050.64
6 yard 483.01       945.11    1,398.00 1,834.89 2,266.03 516.34   1,010.32  1,494.46 1,961.50 2,422.39

each additional 473.42       926.32    1,369.69 1,788.40 2,206.49 506.09   990.24     1,464.20 1,911.80 2,358.74
8 yard 610.71       1,193.77 1,760.75 2,315.56 2,852.48 652.85   1,276.14  1,882.24 2,475.33 3,049.30

each additional 597.75       1,168.65 1,723.48 2,265.58 2,789.73 638.99   1,249.29  1,842.40 2,421.91 2,982.22

Current Commercial Collection Rates New Commercial Collection Rates

Current Commercial Collection Rates New Commercial Collection Rates

COMPACTED RATES COMPACTED RATES

Resolution 2016-003, Exhibit A 
January 19, 2016, Page 2 of 4 34



City of Sherwood
Drop Box Rates  (effective March 1, 2016)

Current Rate New Rate
Service Per Pull Per Pull
10 CuYds 120.00$            128.00$          Haul charge listed + actual disposal fee
20 CuYds 120.00$            128.00$          Haul charge listed + actual disposal fee
30 CuYds 120.00$            128.00$          Haul charge listed + actual disposal fee
40 CuYds 120.00$            128.00$          Haul charge listed + actual disposal fee
Compactor 145.00$            154.00$          Haul charge listed + actual disposal fee
Delivery / Relocation 67.00$              68.00$            
Rental Charge 6.00$                7.00$              10 / 20 CuYds Box after 48 hours

8.00$                9.00$              30 CuYds Box after 48 hours
8.00$                9.00$              40 CuYds Box after 48 hours

Drop Box with Lid 11.00$              12.00$            10 CuYds Box after 48 hours
11.00$              12.00$            20 CuYds Box after 48 hours
13.00$              14.00$            30 CuYds Box after 48 hours
13.00$              14.00$            40 CuYds Box after 48 hours

Resolution 2016-003, Exhibit A 
January 19, 2016, Page 3 of 4 35



City of Sherwood
Medical Waste Rates  (effective March 1, 2016)

Collection Rates Current Rate Proposed Rate
On-site Pick-up Charge 28.50$               35.10$                

Plus Disposal Fee per Collected Unit Unit Cost
Disp-Svc Cost per 17 or < Gal. Unit 19.20$               20.15$                
Disp-Svc Cost per 23 Gal. Unit 20.21$               21.48$                
Disp-Svc Cost per 31 Gal. Unit 21.55$               23.27$                
Disp-Svc Cost per 43 Gal. Unit 24.62$               27.00$                

The Medical Waste Collection Rate is the sum of the On-Site Pick-Up Fee plus the disposal cost per unit of waste.

Resolution 2016-003, Exhibit A 
January 19, 2016, Page 4 of 4 36



Ordinance 2016-001, Staff Report 
January 19, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: January 19, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing, Second Reading 

 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Josh Soper, City Attorney 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance 2016-001, Repealing Chapter 3.25 Marijuana Tax 

 

 
Issue: 

Shall the City Council approve an ordinance repealing the marijuana tax imposed prior to the 
passage of Measure 91?  
 
Background: 

A first reading of this ordinance was held on January 5, 2016 and Council approved sending the 
ordinance to a second reading, without any changes. 
 
This ordinance would repeal the marijuana tax imposed by the City prior to the passage of 
Measure 91 by Oregon voters. Many cities in Oregon were taking similar actions at the time this tax 
was imposed because the law was at that time arguably unclear regarding the potential 
grandfathering of taxes adopted prior to the passage of Measure 91. Since that time, the Oregon 
Legislature has approved bills that allow for cities to impose a tax of up to 3% on retail sales of 
recreational marijuana and which clarify that no other such taxes are permitted.  
 
An ordinance adopting the 3% tax now authorized by Oregon law is also before Council for 
consideration at the January 19, 2016 Council meeting. 
 

Financial Impacts: 

No financial impacts are anticipated because the tax imposed by the existing code provisions has 
not yet been assessed against any marijuana sales, and because in any event the existing code 
provisions are preempted by state law. 
 
Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully recommends City Council adopt Ordinance 2016-001, Repealing Chapter 3.25 
Marijuana Tax. 
 

37



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2016-001 
January 19, 2016 
Page 1 of 1   

 
 

ORDINANCE 2016-001 

 
REPEALING CHAPTER 3.25 MARIJUANA TAX 

  

WHEREAS, the Sherwood City Council previously adopted an ordinance imposing a marijuana tax in 
Chapter 3.25 of the Municipal Code prior to the passage of Measure 91 by Oregon voters; and 
 
WHEREAS, it appears that the tax so imposed is now pre-empted by Oregon statute; 
     
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  
 
Section 1. Repeal 
After full and due consideration of the information presented, the Council finds that the text of the 
Sherwood Municipal Code shall be amended to repeal chapter 3.25 in the Revenue and Finance title of 
the Municipal Code in its entirety. 
 
Section 2. Manager Authorized 

The City Manager is hereby directed and authorized to take such actions as may be necessary to 
implement this ordinance, including necessary updates to the Municipal Code. 
 

Section 3. Effective Date 

This ordinance shall become effective the 30th day after its enactment by the City Council and approval 
by the Mayor. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 19th day of January, 2016. 

 
 
       _______________________    

       Krisanna Clark, Mayor  Date 
Attest:   
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder  
 
           AYE NAY 

Brouse  ____ ____ 
Robinson ____ ____ 
Kuiper  ____ ____ 
King  ____ ____ 
Henderson ____ ____ 
Harris  ____ ____ 
Clark   ____ ____ 

38



Ordinance 2016-002, Staff Report 
January 19, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 

City Council Meeting Date: January 19, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing, Second Reading 

 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Josh Soper, City Attorney 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance 2016-002, Declaring a Ban on Recreational Marijuana Producers, 

Recreational Marijuana Processors, Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, and 

Recreational Marijuana Retailers; Referring Ordinance 
 

 
Issue: 

Shall the City Council approve and refer to the voters at the November 2016 election an ordinance 
declaring a ban on specified categories of recreational marijuana-related businesses? 

 
Background: 

A first reading of this ordinance was held on January 5, 2016. At that time, Council amended the 
ordinance to remove all references to medical marijuana and to remove the emergency clause. 
Staff has additionally amended the ordinance to include standard effective date language to 
replace the stricken emergency language. 
 
A separate ordinance to prohibit certain medical marijuana-related businesses is also before 
Council for a first reading at the January 19, 2016 Council meeting. 
 
Under HB 3400, cities may impose a ban on medical marijuana processing sites, medical 
marijuana dispensaries, recreational marijuana producers, recreational marijuana processors, 
recreational marijuana wholesalers, and/or recreational marijuana retailers by referring an 
ordinance to the voters at a statewide general election. The first opportunity for such an election is 
therefore November 2016. The attached ordinance was drafted to ban all of the above categories 
of recreational marijuana-related businesses, but Council could choose to amend the proposed 
ordinance language to ban only some of them. 
 
HB 3400 also provides a mechanism for imposing a tax of up to 3% on the retail sale of 
recreational marijuana, but states that a city that adopts a ban may not also impose a tax. An 
ordinance creating such a tax is also before Council for consideration at the January 19, 2016 
Council meeting. Council may refer either or both of the prohibition ordinances on the one hand, or 
the tax ordinance on the other hand, to the ballot without creating any conflict; however, if Council 
wishes to refer both the tax ordinance and either or both of the prohibition ordinances, the 
proposed tax ordinance will not be effective if either or both of the prohibition ordinances is 
approved by voters, even if the tax ordinance is also approved. A statement to that effect would be 
included in the ballot titles. 
 

39



Ordinance 2016-002, Staff Report 
January 19, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

A few other specifics of note relating to this ordinance: 
 If adopted by Council, per state law this ordinance will also act as a moratorium on the 

establishment of new facilities in the categories banned until the time of the November 2016 
election. OLCC began accepting applications for licenses for some types of recreational 
marijuana businesses on 1/4/16. 

 Cities that adopt an ordinance prohibiting the establishment of any recreational (or medical) 
marijuana businesses are not eligible to receive a distribution of state marijuana tax 
revenues. 

 

Financial Impacts: 

If this ordinance is approved by Council and referred to the ballot, and then approved by voters, it 
will prevent the City from imposing a local tax of up to 3% on recreational marijuana retail sales. It 
will also prevent the City from receiving its share of the distribution of state marijuana tax revenues. 
Because this is a new industry and no such taxes have yet been collected, an accurate estimate of 
the loss of potential revenue is impossible at this time. 
 
Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully recommends Council discuss and consider adoption of Ordinance 2016-002, 
Declaring a Ban on Recreational Marijuana Producers, Recreational Marijuana Processors, 
Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, and Recreational Marijuana Retailers; Referring Ordinance. 

40



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2016-002 
January 19, 2016 
Page 1 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (1 pg)   

 
 

ORDINANCE 2016-002 

 

DECLARING A BAN ON RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA PRODUCERS, RECREATIONAL 

MARIJUANA PROCESSORS, RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA WHOLESALERS, AND 

RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA RETAILERS; REFERRING ORDINANCE 

 

WHEREAS, Measure 91, which the voters adopted in November 2014, directs the Oregon 
Liquor Control Commission to license the production, processing, wholesale, and retail sale of 
recreational marijuana; and 
 
WHEREAS, section 134 of HB 3400 provides that a city council may adopt an ordinance to be 
referred to the electors of the city prohibiting the establishment of certain state-licensed 
marijuana businesses in the area subject to the jurisdiction of the city; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood City Council wants to refer the question of whether to prohibit 
recreational marijuana producers, processors, wholesalers, and retailers to the voters of the City 
of Sherwood; 
     
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1. Findings. 
After full and due consideration of the information presented, the Council finds that the text of 
the Sherwood Municipal Code shall be amended to adopt a ban on certain specified 
recreational marijuana-related businesses, and the proposed amendments, if approved by the 
voters, shall be added as chapter 5.30 in the Business Licenses and Regulations title of the 
Municipal Code. 
 
Section 2. Approval. 
The proposed amendments for the Municipal Code identified in the attached Exhibit 1, are 
hereby APPROVED. 
 
Section 3. Manager Authorized 

The City Manager is hereby directed and authorized to adopt rules and to take such other 
actions as may be necessary to implement this ordinance, including necessary updates to the 
Municipal Code. 
 

Section 4. Referral 

This ordinance shall be referred to the electors of the City of Sherwood at the next statewide 
general election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016. The City Attorney shall prepare a resolution 

41



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2016-002 
January 19, 2016 
Page 2 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (1 pg)   

for presentation to the Council referring this matter to said election and approving a ballot title 
and explanatory statement. 
 
Section 5. Effective Date 

This ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days after the date of such election, if it receives the 
affirmative majority of the total number of votes cast thereon. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 19th day of January, 2016. 

 
 
 
       _______________________    

       Krisanna Clark, Mayor  Date 
 
 
Attest:   
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder  
           AYE NAY 

Brouse  ____ ____ 
Robinson ____ ____ 
Kuiper  ____ ____ 
King  ____ ____ 
Henderson ____ ____ 
Harris  ____ ____ 
Clark   ____ ____ 

42



  EXHIBIT 1 
 

5.30 Recreational Marijuana Businesses 
 
5.30.010 Definitions 
As used in this chapter, unless the context requires otherwise: 

 
(1) “Marijuana” means the plant Cannabis family Cannabaceae, any part of the plant 

Cannabis family Cannabaceae and the seeds of the plant Cannabis family 
Cannabaceae. 

(2) “Recreational Marijuana Processor” means an entity licensed by the Oregon Liquor 
Control Commission to process Marijuana. 

(3) “Recreational Marijuana Producer” means an entity licensed by the Oregon Liquor 
Control Commission to manufacture, plant, cultivate, grow or harvest Marijuana. 

(4) “Recreational Marijuana Retailer” means an entity licensed by the Oregon Liquor Control 
Commission to sell Marijuana items to a consumer in this state. 

(5) “Recreational Marijuana Wholesaler” means an entity licensed by the Oregon Liquor 
Control Commission to purchase Marijuana items in this state for resale to a person 
other than a consumer. 

 
5.30.020 Ban Declared 
As described in section 134 of House Bill 3400 (2015), the City of Sherwood hereby prohibits 
the establishment and operation of the following in the area subject to the jurisdiction of the City: 
 

(1) Recreational Marijuana Producers; 
(2) Recreational Marijuana Processors; 
(3) Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers; 
(4) Recreational Marijuana Retailers. 

Ordinance 2016-002, Exhibit 1 
Janaury 19, 2016, Page 1 of 1 43



Ordinance 2016-003, Staff Report 
January 19, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: January 19, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing, Second Reading 

 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Josh Soper, City Attorney 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance 2016-003, Imposing a Three Percent Tax on the Sale of Marijuana Items 

by a Marijuana Retailer and Referring Ordinance 
 

 
Issue: 

Shall the City Council approve and refer to the voters at the November 2016 election an ordinance 
imposing a 3% tax on the sale of marijuana items by marijuana retailers? 

 
Background: 

A first reading of this ordinance was held on January 5, 2016 and Council approved sending the 
ordinance to a second reading, without any changes. 
 
Under HB 3400, cities may impose up to a 3% tax on sales of marijuana items made by those with 
recreational retail licenses by referring an ordinance to the voters at a statewide general election. The 
first opportunity for such an election is therefore November 2016.  
 
However, that bill also provides a mechanism for prohibiting the establishment of certain marijuana 
businesses, but states that a city that adopts such a prohibition may not also impose a tax. Two 
ordinances creating such prohibitions are also before Council for consideration at the January 19, 2016 
Council meeting. Council may refer either or both of the prohibition ordinances on the one hand, or the 
tax ordinance on the other hand, to the ballot without creating any conflict; however, if Council wishes to 
refer both the tax ordinance and either or both of the prohibition ordinances, the proposed tax ordinance 
will not be effective if either or both of the prohibition ordinances is approved by voters, even if the tax 
ordinance is also approved. A statement to that effect would be included in the ballot titles. 
 

Financial Impacts: 

If this ordinance is approved by Council and referred to the ballot, and then approved by voters, and a 
prohibition ordinance is not also referred to the ballot and approved by voters, it will likely eventually 
result in a revenue increase for the City. The amount of revenue is dependent on the number of 
recreational marijuana retail stores in the City (currently zero) and their sales figures. Because this is a 
new industry, an accurate estimate is impossible at this time. 
 
Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully recommends Council discuss and consider adoption of Ordinance 2016-003, imposing 
a Three Percent Tax on the Sale of Marijuana Items by a Marijuana Retailer and Referring Ordinance. 

44



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2016-003 
January 19, 2016 
Page 1 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (1 pg)   

 
 

ORDINANCE 2016-003 

 
IMPOSING A THREE PERCENT TAX ON THE SALE OF MARIJUANA ITEMS BY A MARIJUANA 

RETAILER AND REFERRING ORDINANCE 

  

WHEREAS, section 34a of House Bill 3400 (2015) provides that a city council may adopt an 
ordinance to be referred to the voters that imposes up to a three percent tax or fee on the sale of 
marijuana items by a marijuana retailer in the area subject to the jurisdiction of the city; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood City Council wants to refer the question of whether to impose a tax on the 
sale of marijuana items by a marijuana retailer in the area subject to the jurisdiction of the City to the 
voters of the City of Sherwood; 
     
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1. Findings. 
After full and due consideration of the information presented, the Council finds that the text of the 
Sherwood Municipal Code shall be amended to adopt a marijuana tax, and the proposed 
amendments, if approved by the voters, shall be added as chapter 3.25 in the Revenue and Finance 
title of the Municipal Code. 
 
Section 2. Approval. 
The proposed amendments for the Municipal Code identified in the attached Exhibit 1, are hereby 
APPROVED. 
 
Section 3. Manager Authorized 

The City Manager is hereby directed and authorized to adopt rules and to take such other actions as 
may be necessary to implement this ordinance, including necessary updates to the Municipal Code. 
 

Section 4. Referral 

This ordinance shall be referred to the electors of the City of Sherwood at the next statewide general 
election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016. The City Attorney shall prepare a resolution for presentation 
to the Council referring this matter to said election and approving a ballot title and explanatory 
statement.  
 
Section 5. Effective Date 

This ordinance shall be effective upon certification of the election results by the City Council, if it 
receives the affirmative majority of the total number of votes cast thereon. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 19th day of January, 2016. 

 

45



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2016-003 
January 19, 2016 
Page 2 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (1 pg)   

 
       _______________________    

       Krisanna Clark, Mayor  Date 
 
 
 
 
Attest:   
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder  
           AYE NAY 

Brouse  ____ ____ 
Robinson ____ ____ 
Kuiper  ____ ____ 
King  ____ ____ 
Henderson ____ ____ 
Harris  ____ ____ 
Clark   ____ ____ 

46



EXHIBIT 1 
 

3.25 Marijuana Tax 
 
3.25.010 Definitions 
As used in this chapter, unless the context requires otherwise: 

 
(1) “Marijuana Item” has the meaning given that term in Oregon Laws 2015, chapter 614, 

section 1. 
(2) “Recreational Marijuana Retailer” means a person who sells Marijuana Items to a 

consumer in this state. 
(3) “Retail Sale Price” means the price paid for a Marijuana Item, excluding tax, to a 

Recreational Marijuana Retailer by or on behalf of a consumer of the Marijuana Item. 
 
3.25.020 Tax Imposed 
As described in section 34a of House Bill 3400 (2015), the City of Sherwood hereby imposes a 
tax of three percent (3%) on the Retail Sale Price of Marijuana Items by a Recreational 
Marijuana Retailer in the area subject to the jurisdiction of the City. 
 
3.25.030 Collection 
The tax shall be collected at the point of sale of a Marijuana Item by a Recreational Marijuana 
Retailer at the time at which the retail sale occurs and remitted by each Recreational Marijuana 
Retailer that engages in the retail sale of Marijuana Items. 

Ordinance 2016-003, Exhibit 1 
January 19, 2016, Page 1 of 1 47



Ordinance 2016-004, Staff Report 
January 19, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 

City Council Meeting Date: January 19, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing, First Reading 

 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Josh Soper, City Attorney 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance 2016-004, Declaring a Ban on Medical Marijuana Processing Sites 

and Medical Marijuana Dispensaries; Referring Ordinance 
 

 
Issue: 

Shall the City Council approve and refer to the voters at the November 2016 election an ordinance 
declaring a ban on specified categories of medical marijuana-related businesses? 

 
Background: 

A first reading of an ordinance to ban specified categories of both medical and recreational 
marijuana-related business was held on January 5, 2016. At that time, Council amended the 
ordinance to remove all references to medical marijuana and to remove the emergency clause, 
and instructed staff to present a separate ordinance to prohibit certain categories of medical 
marijuana-related businesses. A second reading of the recreational marijuana prohibition 
ordinance is also before Council at the January 19, 2016 Council meeting. Because this medical 
marijuana prohibition ordinance is a new and separate ordinance, it is before Council for a first 
reading. 
 
Under HB 3400, cities may impose a ban on medical marijuana processing sites, medical 
marijuana dispensaries, recreational marijuana producers, recreational marijuana processors, 
recreational marijuana wholesalers, and/or recreational marijuana retailers by referring an 
ordinance to the voters at a statewide general election. The first opportunity for such an election is 
therefore November 2016. The attached ordinance was drafted to ban both of the above 
categories of medical marijuana-related businesses, but Council could choose to amend the 
proposed ordinance language to ban only one of them. 
 
HB 3400 also provides a mechanism for imposing a tax of up to 3% on the retail sale of 
recreational marijuana, but states that a city that adopts a ban may not also impose a tax. An 
ordinance creating such a tax is also before Council for consideration at the January 19, 2016 
Council meeting. Council may refer either or both of the prohibition ordinances on the one hand, or 
the tax ordinance on the other hand, to the ballot without creating any conflict; however, if Council 
wishes to refer both the tax ordinance and either or both of the prohibition ordinances, the 
proposed tax ordinance will not be effective if either or both of the prohibition ordinances is 
approved by voters, even if the tax ordinance is also approved. A statement to that effect would be 
included in the ballot titles. 
 

48



Ordinance 2016-004, Staff Report 
January 19, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
A few other specifics of note relating to this ordinance: 

 If adopted by Council, per state law this ordinance will also act as a moratorium on the 
establishment of new facilities in the categories banned until the time of the November 2016 
election.  

 Medical marijuana dispensaries are grandfathered and are able to operate despite a ban if 
they: (1) have applied to be registered by July 1, 2015 or were registered prior to the date 
on which the ordinance is adopted by Council, and (2) successfully completed the land use 
application process (if applicable).  

 Medical marijuana processors are grandfathered and are able to operate despite a ban if 
they: (1) were registered under ORS 475.300 to 475.346 and were processing usable 
marijuana on or before July 1, 2015 or (2) are registered under section 85 of HB 3400 prior 
to the date on which the ordinance is adopted by the governing body, and (3) have 
successfully completed a local land use application process (if applicable). 

 Cities that adopt an ordinance prohibiting the establishment of any medical (or recreational) 
marijuana businesses are not eligible to receive a distribution of state marijuana tax 
revenues. 

 

Financial Impacts: 

If this ordinance is approved by Council and referred to the ballot, and then approved by voters, it 
will prevent the City from imposing a local tax of up to 3% on recreational marijuana retail sales. It 
will also prevent the City from receiving its share of the distribution of state marijuana tax revenues. 
Because this is a new industry and no such taxes have yet been collected, an accurate estimate of 
the loss of potential revenue is impossible at this time. 
 
Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully recommends Council discuss and consider adoption of Ordinance 2016-004, 
declaring a Ban on Medical Marijuana Processing Sites and Medical Marijuana Dispensaries; 
Referring Ordinance. 

49



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2016-004 
January 19, 2016 
Page 1 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (1 pg)   

 
 

ORDINANCE 2016-004 

 

DECLARING A BAN ON MEDICAL MARIJUANA PROCESSING SITES AND MEDICAL 

MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES; REFERRING ORDINANCE 

  

WHEREAS, the Oregon Medical Marijuana Act, as amended by House Bill 3400 (2015), 
provides that the Oregon Health Authority will register medical marijuana processing sites and 
medical marijuana dispensaries; and 
 
WHEREAS, section 134 of HB 3400 provides that a city council may adopt an ordinance to be 
referred to the electors of the city prohibiting the establishment of certain state-registered 
marijuana businesses in the area subject to the jurisdiction of the city; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood City Council wants to refer the question of whether to prohibit 
medical marijuana processors and medical marijuana dispensaries to the voters of the City of 
Sherwood; 
     
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1. Findings. 
After full and due consideration of the information presented, the Council finds that the text of 
the Sherwood Municipal Code shall be amended to adopt a ban on certain specified medical 
marijuana-related businesses, and the proposed amendments, if approved by the voters, shall 
be added as chapter 5.31 in the Business Licenses and Regulations title of the Municipal Code. 
 
Section 2. Approval. 
The proposed amendments for the Municipal Code identified in the attached Exhibit 1, are 
hereby APPROVED. 
 
Section 3. Manager Authorized 

The City Manager is hereby directed and authorized to adopt rules and to take such other 
actions as may be necessary to implement this ordinance, including necessary updates to the 
Municipal Code. 
 

Section 4. Referral 

This ordinance shall be referred to the electors of the City of Sherwood at the next statewide 
general election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016. The City Attorney shall prepare a resolution 
for presentation to the Council referring this matter to said election and approving a ballot title 
and explanatory statement. 
 

50



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2016-004 
January 19, 2016 
Page 2 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (1 pg)   

Section 5. Effective Date 

This ordinance shall be effective upon certification of the election results by the City Council, if it 
receives the affirmative majority of the total number of votes cast thereon. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 19th day of January, 2016. 

 
 
 
       _______________________    

       Krisanna Clark, Mayor  Date 
 
 
Attest:   
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder  
           AYE NAY 

Brouse  ____ ____ 
Robinson ____ ____ 
Kuiper  ____ ____ 
King  ____ ____ 
Henderson ____ ____ 
Harris  ____ ____ 
Clark   ____ ____ 

51



  EXHIBIT 1 
 

5.31 Medical Marijuana Businesses 
 
5.31.010 Definitions 
As used in this chapter, unless the context requires otherwise: 

 
(1) “Marijuana” means the plant Cannabis family Cannabaceae, any part of the plant 

Cannabis family Cannabaceae and the seeds of the plant Cannabis family 
Cannabaceae. 

(2) “Medical Marijuana Processing Site” means an entity registered with the Oregon Health 
Authority to process Marijuana. 

(3) “Medical Marijuana Dispensary” means an entity registered with the Oregon Health 
Authority to transfer Marijuana. 

 
5.31.020 Ban Declared 
As described in section 134 of House Bill 3400 (2015), the City of Sherwood hereby prohibits 
the establishment and operation of the following in the area subject to the jurisdiction of the City: 
 

(1) Medical Marijuana Processing Sites; 
(2) Medical Marijuana Dispensaries; 

 
5.31.030 Exception 
The prohibition set out in this ordinance does not apply to a Medical Marijuana Processing Site 
or Medical Marijuana Dispensary that meets the conditions set out in subsections 6 or 7 of 
section 134, section 136, or section 137 of House Bill 3400 (2015). 

Ordinance 2016-004, Exhibit 1 
January 19, 2016, Page 1 of 1 52



Community Development Department – 
Monthly update 

January 8, 2016 
The City of Sherwood Community Development Division consists of three departments which, 
provides quality current and long range planning, building and engineering services to support the 
infrastructure, livability, well-being and economic development of the community.  The following is 
a summary of the key projects or tasks each department routinely does for the community and an 
update on current projects or status.  

Planning: 
Current Planning- Projects in Review  
 Claus Property Rezone (22211 SW Pacific Highway) – Proposal to rezone 2.66 acres of a 5.86 acre site 

from General Commercial to Medium Density Residential Low. 

 Mandel Property Rezone (21340 SW Elwert Road) – Proposal to rezone the Neighborhood Commercial 
portion (3 acres) of an approximately 21 acre parent parcel to Medium Density Residential High– 
Approved by Council.  

 Mandel Property Subdivision (21340 SW Elwert Road) – Proposal to divide approximately 21 acres into 
78 individual lots.  Two of the lots make up the neighborhood commercial acreage that the applicant is 
proposing to rezone in a separate application.  

 Parkway Court Zone Change (corner of SW Parkway Ct and Meinecke Parkway) – Proposal to rezone 
approximately 1 acre from General Commercial to Medium Density Residential Low. – under review 

 Endurance Products Site Plan (13990 SW Galbreath Drive) – Proposal to add a new 15,550 sq. ft. 
building on site.  The current building is approximately 13,400 sq feet. – Approved 

 Symposium Tree Removal (22461 SW Pine Street) – Proposal to remove four Cottonwood trees at the 
back corner of the parking area, and replace them with three Maple trees.  Approved 

 Cedar Brook Professional Building Expansion (17680 SW Handley Street) – Proposal to enclose an 
existing outdoor deck on the second floor of the building and increase the existing building square 
footage by 1,296 square feet. The existing footprint of the building will not change.  Approved 
 

For approved projects or more detail, check out “projects” under “more resources” on the website at 
http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/projects, or contact Brad Kilby at (503)625-4206.  
 

Long Range Planning  
• SW Corridor Plan – The primary focus lately has been on evaluating High Capacity Transit choices from 

Portland to Tualatin.  The Steering Committee is expected to make a decision on line terminus and 
narrow alignments options in Central Barbur, Tigard and Tualatin in January. A mode decision (light 
rail or bus rapid transit) is anticipated in February. A final preferred package to move into the next 
stage in project development is anticipated in April/May 2016.  

• Tri-Met Local Service - Tri-met has added into their budget the addition of a new line between 
Sherwood and Tualatin. They anticipate having serve start in June 2016.  They are currently refining 
the exact alignment, including ending location in Sherwood, and stop locations. A work session was 
held on 11/3/15 and 12/1/15 with Council.  Based on feedback received at the Council worksession, 
Tri-met will be planning service to go down Langer Farms Parkway and Century Drive rather than Baler 
and Langer Drive as originally planned. This will provide more service options to more residents.  Once 
service has started, feedback will be important since Tri-met can make adjustments to the alignments. 
Staff will continue to coordinate with Tri-Met.  Tri-met has reached out to developments along 
Century to discuss the plan. Tri-met staff, with assistance from Sherwood will be holding a meeting 

53



with interested property owners to discuss any questions or concerns they have the alignment and 
potential stops.  The meeting will occur early February. 

• Cedar Creek Trail (Regional Flexible Fund grant) – The engineering design work continues on the 
Oregon St-99W segment with the wetland delineation and the geotechnical work progressing, as well 
as the refinement of the trail design.  We held an open house December 3, 2015 to provide citizens 
and residents along the trail corridor an opportunity to comment on the design and alignment.  
Approximately 20 people attended the open house.  Staff provided an update to Sherwood Main 
Streets on November 19th. 

• Sherwood West Concept Planning (CET grant funded) – 1,290 acre preliminary concept plan west of 
Elwert Road, north of Highway 99W, and south of Scholls-Sherwood Road.  The preferred alternative 
will be presented to the Sherwood Planning Commission in a work session on December 8, 2015. The 
next steps include hearings before the Planning Commission and City Council which are tentatively 
scheduled for January 12, 2016 and February 2, 2016 respectively.  

• Washington County Transportation Study – No new information for this report.  Staff is continuing to 
actively monitor and participate in the study to evaluate the long-term transportation strategies and 
investments needed to sustain the county's economic health and quality of life in the coming decades. 
The study results will provide a better understanding of long-term transportation needs, tradeoffs 
between alternative transportation investments, and inform future choices and decisions.  

• Tannery Site Assessment (EPA grant funded) – The City is doing an environmental site assessment on a 
portion of the former Frontier Leather Tannery site to help the City identify issues, risks and costs 
associated with acquiring the property from Washington County and potentially developing it. Field 
work to collect soil samples was completed in November and samples were sent to the lab for 
analysis. The consultant is currently reviewing the results and will be providing a report in the near 
future.  Additional field work is expected to occur in the Spring of 2016 followed by the second 
planned public meeting to discuss the preliminary assessment findings.  

• City of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan Update – Staff is beginning to gear up for a multi-year effort to 
update the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The last major update of the plan was in 1991 when the City’s 
population was under 4,000 people. Council approved a resolution September 15, 2015 supporting 
the project and authorizing staff to seek state funding for the effort.  Staff is continuing to work on 
finding potential sources of funding for elements of the comprehensive plan update to offset general 
fund costs.  Staff will be identifying how to break the project up into phases that will allow the project 
to move forward in a timely manner. The comprehensive plan update project is expected to take 2-3 
years to fully complete due to the extensive community outreach and engagement required. 

• Tualatin-Sherwood Road widening project – Staff met with County staff and representatives for the 
owners of the Haggen property (MGP) on October 16th. County staff reiterated that there is no option 
on the table that includes the light staying. County staff did express a willingness to continue exploring 
maintaining a left in, however they were skeptical that it would be able to work.  The representative 
indicated they would speak to their client.  The County had a meeting with representatives from MGP 
on 12/8.  The meeting went generally well but the County made it clear that the signal remaining was 
not an option. The property owners continue to express concerns. The County indicated that they are 
willing to continue discussions to address concerns with the understanding that the light was going to 
be removed. The property owners were going to consider whether there was anything that they were 
willing to discuss that could mitigate their concerns beyond the signal remaining.  Meanwhile, 
progress is being made on the Tekfal property (Regal, Roses, KFC site) in reaching a settlement.   

• Industrial Uses – In response to feedback from a number of brokers looking at potential development 
in the Tonquin Employment Area, we realized that we need to evaluate the industrial uses allowed in 
the Industrial Employment Zone.  At this time, there are a very limited number and type of uses 
allowed in this zone, making it very difficult to market.  Julia and Tom presented the issue to the 
Planning Commission and received support on the importance of taking on this project.  Because the 
planning work program is already full with existing projects underway, Julia will be leading this project 
and has identified a very quick timeline. The hope is to have revised code language in place by June 
2016. The focus will be on opening up the uses to allow more of what we want while ensuring the 
types of uses that would be incompatible continue to be prohibited.  A survey to all industrial property 

54



owners was sent out last month to get feedback.  The survey also available on line. A public work 
session with the Planning Commission is scheduled for January 12th to discuss in depth with interested 
parties. 

 

Other 
• Street Tree Permits - 65 permits issued this calendar year.  
• Pre-application Conferences- Below is a list of pre-application meetings held. If an application is 

submitted they will be taken off the list. In addition, if additional activity occurs (that staff knows of) 
this will be reported in this section as well. 
o Proposal to construct a 66,000 square foot flexible industrial building on Galbreath Drive, just west 

of the intersection with Cipole Road. 
o Sentinel storage expansion – proposal to do a two lot partition on the property fronting Langer 

Farms Parkway south of Century drive and do an expansion of the existing facility on 5.89 acres on 
the southern portion of the site. 

o Proposal for approximately 18-20 single family homes on Pacific Highway just west of SW 
Meinecke Road. 

o Sherwood Elks Lodge (22770 SW Elwert Road) held a meeting on June 8, 2015 to discuss various 
development options.   

o Proposal to construct 82 multi-family units behind Safari Sam’s on the property located at 16380 
SW Langer Road (Preapp was held on July 14, 2015).  Engineering is providing Traffic Impact Study 
(TIS) requirements and information on required infrastructure. 

o Sherwood Patel Hotel (21930/21970 SW Alexander Lane near the corner of SW Meinecke Pkwy 
and 99W) Proposal for a hotel with approximately 80 rooms and associated parking.   Meeting was 
held on September 14, 2015. Engineering is providing Traffic Impact Study (TIS) requirements and 
information on required infrastructure. 

• Planning staff is assisting City Administration in preparing land use applications for a new parking lot 
in Old Town as well as the proposed community gardens. 

Engineering: 
Capital (City or URA) projects 
 Columbia Street Water Quality Facility Phase 2 - Project main construction has been completed.  The 

project is now constructing the mitigation portion with an improvement of a pedestrian crossing of a 
downstream corridor.  This mitigation portion of the project replaces an unsized culvert with a larger 
culvert.  Craig Christensen is the project manager for the City.  

 Tonquin Employment Area Sanitary Sewer upgrade-Project is generally complete, however there 
were some issues in one segment when the pipe bursting was done causing a “belly” in the pipe.  The 
City is working to remedy pipe bursting issue.  Additionally, the contractor defaulted on their contract 
and the City is trying to negotiate a resolution with the bonding company.  The City Attorney is leading 
the negotiations efforts. Craig Christensen is the project manager. 

 Stormwater Master Plan Update and rate study –Master plan update is in process.  MSA contracted 
with to perform MP update. Project schedule spans two fiscal years (FY14/15 and Fy15/16).  Once 
modeling process is complete, a full CIP project listing will be developed and estimated 
design/construction costs will be generated for use in SDC rate analysis.  Bob Galati is the project 
manager 

 Sanitary Sewer Master Plan Update and rate study – Master plan update is in process.  MSA 
contracted with to perform MP update. Project schedule spans two fiscal years (FY14/15 and 
Fy15/16).  Once modeling process is complete, a full CIP project listing will be developed and 
estimated design/construction costs will be generated for use in SDC rate analysis.  Bob Galati is the 
project manager 

 Woodhaven Park Phase 2 (Design) – Planning has approved the project. It is finishing design and will 
go out for bid in the near future.  Project consists of development of planning approval process 
documents for park development, and full bid set containing design plans, specifications, and cost 

55



estimates.  Kristen Switzer is project manager, with Bob Galati providing support and coordination 
with civil engineering firm (HHPR) performing design and planning approval, and project budget 
oversight. 

 Downtown Parking Lot Development – Project consists of constructing public parking lot of City 
owned lots located on north side of 1st Street between Pine and Oak Streets.  The project will require 
Land Use application and approval.  Project scheduled to be complete by June 2016, however, it is 
anticipated that the project design and construction will be completed within the current Fiscal Year 
15/16.  Survey for the project has been completed and engineering design for land use action is 
underway.  .  Currently contracting with HHPR to provide planning services for Old Town Overlay zone 
text amendment to allow a stand along public parking lot in a residential zone under a Conditional Use 
Permit application process.  Bob Galati is the project manager. 

 Downtown Streetscapes Monument Removal – Project consists of removing concrete pylons located 
at the intersections of 1st Street with Pine, Washington and Main Streets.  The first phase of the 
project is a feasibility study to determine the requirements and impacts associated with removal.  The 
second phase will include design and construction of the pylon removal and replacement structures (if 
any).  The first phase has been budgeted in the current Fiscal Year 15/16, phase 2 will be discussed 
further upon the completion of Phase1.  RFP for consultant services has been discussed. RFP was 
issued for public notice in the DJC on Tuesday, November 2nd.  The City received two qualified 
engineering firm submittals.  Review and grading of the submittals has been completed and 
negotiation of final scope of work and associated fee is underway.  Jason Waters is the project 
manager. 

 Transportation SDC and Rate Study – Project consists of performing an SDC and Rate study associated 
with the projects identified in the TSP and refined in the TSP Construction Cost Refinement Project.  It 
is anticipated that this project will be completed within the current Fiscal Year 15/16.  Consultant 
services were solicited and Council approved resolution authorizing City Manager to sign a contract 
with FCS Group.  Notice to Proceed (NTP) has been issued.  .  Bob Galati is the project manager. 

 Langer Farms Parkway Pedestrian Crossing – DKS was contracted to perform an analysis and provide 
a recommendation on whether a pedestrian crossing on Langer Farms Parkway between the Parkway 
Village site and the Target site was warranted and whether a safe crossing could be provided if 
warranted.  The report has been prepared confirming it is warranted and recommendations made.  
Directive has been made to proceed with design and construction of the pedestrian crossing based on 
the recommendations made in the report.  Funding options are being identified and may require 
supplemental budget item approval action. 

 

Private Development: 
 Cedar Creek PUD – D.R. Horton development of multi-family residential units on lot adjacent to Cedar 

Creek Condos and bounded by Cedar Brook Way street extension.  Design review and approval 
completed.  Construction in process.  Craig Christensen is project manager. 

 Main Street Subdivision – Single family residential development is under construction.  Public 
improvements are being constructed prior to construction of buildings.  Public improvements for the 
project have been completed.  Craig Christensen is project manager. 

 Roshun Village Development – Project public improvements have been completed.  On-site building 
construction is underway.  Craig Christensen is project manager. 

 Mandel property development submittal review, comment and discussion with developers 
engineering firm is resolving several technical issues related to the proposed development.  Final 
approval of changes pending submittal of Design Variation Requests. 

 Several private development meetings on potential development sites within the City have taken 
place.  Discussions of transportation requirements and SDC impacts/fees estimates have been 
performed.  Ongoing communications regarding these developments are looking positive. 

 

 
 

56



Other: 
 Right of Way permits:  58 ROW permits issued from 01/01/15 to date. $7,980 revenue generated from 

permits.  15 permits are currently active. 
o The engineering department is working closely with the DR Horton developers on Cedar 

Brook/Meinecke to facilitate their ability to construct necessary water line and other 
infrastructure improvements in Meinecke; however partial closures will be necessary. The 
City is requiring significant coordination with the School District and emergency service 
providers, advance notice to property owners and public notice via our traditional 
methods. After coordination and additional input from the School District, the 
construction schedule has been modified by breaking it up into two different phases. A 
shorter, 3 day closure of the westbound lane (off 99W onto Meinecke) will occur late 
October and will avoid closure during the morning drop off period. A longer closure will be 
needed to install a water line in the street but will be scheduled once the Cedar Brook 
extension is complete to Meinecke (which will allow for a shorter detour option) and for a 
period when school is not in session. More information on the longer closure will be 
provided as that time approaches. 

 Addressing:    1 new addresses issued this month (December) 

 Erosion control inspections:  Staff has 3 active/open erosion control permits which require inspections 
weekly and monthly reports to Clean Water Services.  1 inactive sites requiring bi-weekly inspections.  
15 active SFR and/or ground disturbing activity permits issued by Building Department.  9 inactively 
SFR and/or ground disturbing activity permits on file.  1 unpermitted grading/ground disturbing 
activity requiring action occurred and resolved with permit issuance. 

 Traffic Control Management Planning:  In response to numerous requests from residents CDD staff is 
in the process of developing guidance policy draft for future traffic calming requests.  This will be an 
on-going discussion and no formal action will be taken until conversations with Council are held. 

 Kruger/Elwert Intersection Improvements – The County will begin design of the intersection 
improvement (which includes a roundabout on the City owned property). An IGA with Washington 
County has been signed by City Manager.  The 30% design level work by County has begun. It is 
anticipated that a 30% design will be complete within 1 year and then will be put on standby until 
2018. If development is planned prior to 2018 which necessitates its construction sooner, the County 
will be able to move up the timeline. Resolution for authorizing City Manager signature on IGA with 
County being presented at November 17th.  City attended project kick-off meeting on December 12th. 

 CWS MS4 NPDES – Clean Water Services (CWS) is currently in the process of updating their Municipal 
Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4) Nation Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit 
which will include new EPA requirements that City’s will need to incorporate into engineering and 
development standards.  The impacts to the City of Sherwood’s engineering and development 
standards appear to be relatively small as the City’s stormwater facilities and natural drainage ways 
are in good condition.  One item that will impact the City and development within the City is the 
hydro-modification requirement (detention on-site to mitigate stream corridor impacts such as 
erosion).  This item is currently being discussed in depth by CWS with EPA as other municipalities 
within the CWS service area may be impacted to a larger extent which would result in jurisdictions like 
Sherwood to mitigate more than actually necessary. 

 
CWS has submitted a draft of the permit to EPA for initial review and discussion. It is anticipated that 
CWS will be obtaining their permit within the next 6-months.  Implementation of the conditions of the 
Phase I Permit will occur over an estimated 5-year timeline, with full implementation occurring in year 
5. 

Building: 
Permits issued and under construction  
 New DR Horton sub-division (Cedar Brook) Engineering approved for construction-Building plans are 

now in review with Planning and Building Dept.  

57



 Sherwood industrial Park-New Building #3-14944 SW Century Dr- Tilt-up panels up 

 Sherwood industrial Park-New Building #4-15028 SW Century Dr- Tilt-up panels up 

 JB Insulation Office Addition-14175 SW Galbreath-Waiting for final inspection 

 Old Spaghetti Factory – 21192 SW Langer Farms-Slab-on-grade - Framing 

 NW Natural Office Tenant improvement-20285 SW Cipole  -  Completed 

 Koba Grill Tenant Improvement-21370 SW Langer Farms - Framing 

 Roshun Village Apartments BLD C- - Framing 

 11 Single Family Homes Issued and/or in construction 

 12 Structural Residential Additions/Remodels/Misc. 

 Multiple plumbing/mechanical/misc. permits issued 

 Roshun Village Apartments BLD B-Frame 

 Roshun Village BLD A- Framing  

 Artizan Salon T/I-21430 SW Langer Farms Pkwy #152- Framing 

 Baja Fresh Mexican Grill T/I-16002 SW Tual/Sher Rd-Issued 

 Darryl’s Ice Cream T/I (Production, not retail)-14889 SW Tual/Sher Rd. -Issued 

 100 Fold commercial T/I-Caretakers Quarters-14145 SW Galbreath Dr.-Issued 
 

Permits in review 
 22 Single Family Home in review, 2 other ready to issue.  

 Screen Magic-(screen printing)-21655 SW Pacific Hwy (The abandoned tractor rental bld) 

58


	01 City Council Packet Cover 01.19.16
	02  City Council Agenda 01.19.16
	03  01.05.16 City Council Minutes-DRAFT
	04  Resolution 2016-002 Extend Comcast Franchise-STAFF REPORT
	05 Resolution 2016-002 Extend Comcast Franchise-DRAFT
	06 Resolution 2016-002 Extend Comcast Franchise-EXH A
	07  Resolution 2016-003 Adjust Solid Waste & Recycling Collection Rates-STAFF REPORT
	08  Resolution 2016-003 Adjust Solid Waste & Recycling Collection Rates-DRAFT
	09  Resolution 2016-003 Adjust Solid Waste & Recycling Collection Rates-EXH A
	10  Ordinance 2016-001 Tax Repeal, Chap 3.25 Marijuana Tax-STAFF REPORT
	11  Ordinance 2016-001 Tax Repeal, Chap 3.25 Marijuana Tax-DRAFT
	12  Ordinance 2016-002 Ban, Recreational Marijuana Related Facilities-STAFF REPORT
	13  Ordinance 2016-002 Ban, Recreational Marijuana Related Facilities-DRAFT
	14  Ordinance 2016-002 Ban, Recreational Marijuana Related Facilities-EXH 1
	15  Ordinance 2016-003 3% Marijuana Tax, Imposing Tax-STAFF REPORT
	16  Ordinance 2016-003 3% Marijuana Tax, Imposing Tax-DRAFT
	17  Ordinance 2016-003 3% Marijuana Tax, Imposing Tax-EXH 1
	18  Ordinance 2016-004 Ban, Medical Marijuana Related Facilities-STAFF REPORT
	19  Ordinance 2016-004 Ban, Medical Marijuana Related Facilities-DRAFT
	20  Ordinance 2016-004 Ban, Medical Marijuana Related Facilities-EXH 1
	21  Comm Dev Monthly Report Dec 2015



